

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2017                                                                                    EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 8th Nov 2017 - Page 1 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 5:30 p.m. 


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


   


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957) 


Information for possible action 


2.2. Certificated/Classified/Management 
Leaves, Retirements, Resignations & 
Appointments 


Information for possible action 


2.3. Conference with Labor Negotiators (Govt. 
Code 54957.6) 


SCCS Negotiator Parks will provide an update to and 
receive direction from the Trustees regarding negotiations 
with the GSCFT for 2017-18. 


2.4. Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code 
54956.8) 


Address: 255 Swift St., Santa Cruz, CA                              
Agency Negotiator: Mr. Gaffney                                    
Negotiating Parties: Gateway School                                                                                  
Under Negotiation: Terms of Agreements 


Address: 133 Mission St., Santa Cruz, CA                        
Agency Negotiator:  Mr. Gaffney                                                
Purpose: Update and Board Direction 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance  


3.2. Agenda changes, additions or deletions  


   


1 of 332







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2017                                                                                    EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 8th Nov 2017 - Page 2 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


   


5. Superintendent's and Student 
Representatives' Reports 


 


5.1. Superintendent's Report  


5.2. Student Representatives' Reports  


   


6. Board Members' Reports  


6.1. Board Members' Reports  


6.2. Board President's Report  


   


7. Approval of Minutes  


7.1. Minutes of the Special Meeting on October 
11, 2017 


 


7.2. Minutes of the Regular Meeting on October 
18, 2017 


 


7.3. Minutes of the Board Study Session on 
November 1, 2017 


 


   


8. General Public Business  


   


8.1. Consent Agenda: These matters may be 
passed by one roll call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Personnel Actions - Certificated  


8.1.2. Personnel Actions - Classified  


2 of 332







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2017                                                                                    EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 8th Nov 2017 - Page 3 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  


8.1.4. Warrant Register  


8.1.5. Budget Transfers  


8.1.6. Gifts  


8.1.7. PE Waiver for ARK Student  


8.1.8. Approve Parcel Tax Oversight Committee 
Members 


 


8.1.9. Approve Bond Oversight Committee 
Member 


 


8.1.10. 1st Quarter Investment Reports  


8.1.11. Revised Classified Job Description: Project 
Coordinator 


 


8.1.12. Contracts & Agreements  


8.1.12.1. Superintendent's Office: MOU: SCCS/S4C-
7th Grade College Commitment Field Trip 


 


8.1.12.2. Educational Services/Special Education: 
Agreement for Professional Services-
Margaret Bark 


 


8.1.12.3. Business Services: Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.1.12.3.1. Contract: Wasinger Inspection Services  


8.1.12.3.2. Contract: School Site Solutions-CEQA  


8.1.12.3.3. Contract: Crowe Horwath-Audit Services 
for Measure B 


 


8.1.12.3.4. Contract: GEOTRINITY Consultants, Inc.-
Soil investigation and reports for Natural 
Bridges Gymnasium 


 


8.1.13. Disposition of Surplus Property  


   


3 of 332







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2017                                                                                    EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 8th Nov 2017 - Page 4 of 6 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.2. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.2.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


   


8.3. Items to Be Transacted and/or 
Discussed 


 


8.3.1. Staff Report: Local Control Accountability 
Plan (LCAP) Update: School Community 
Coordinator/EL Roadmap 


School Community Coordinators are an essential bridge 
between our English Language Learner parent community 
and our schools, as well as serving to support other 
students in our system by linking families in transition to 
community resources such as health care and other vital 
services. 


8.3.2. New Business: Workforce Housing 
Feasibility Presentation 


Recommendation:  Approve Consulting Services Agreement 
for Phase 1 – Preliminary Workforce Housing Study by 
Dutra Cerro Graden, Inc. 


8.3.3. Staff Report: Single Plans for Student 
Achievement (SPSA) 


The Single Plan for Student Achievement is a blueprint to 
improve the academic performance of all students. The 
purpose of the SPSA is to coordinate all educational 
services at the school. 


8.3.4. New Business: Bid Recommendation for 
Mission Hill Middle School front landscape 
and drop-off 


Reject bid received for Mission Hill Middle School Front 
Access Landscape and Drop Off/Pick-Up Area Project, Bid # 
2017-16. 


8.3.5. New Business: Board Policy Updates: 
Final Reading and Approval 


Recommendation: Approve the policies as submitted.  
These policies were brought to the Board on October 18 and 
approved for first reading.  They are re-submitted tonight for 
final approval. 


   


9. Adjournment  


   


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


 


4 of 332







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2017                                                                                    EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 8th Nov 2017 - Page 5 of 6 


The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html or may be viewed at the District 
Office, Superintendent’s Office, Room 303, 405 Old San Jose Road, Soquel, CA.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting 
as any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in 
open session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be 
considered in closed session. 
 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Nancy 
Lentz by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Nancy Lentz por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., 
will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of 
Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5 of 332



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/board-of-education/agendas-&-minutes.html





SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                                                          DATE:                                    
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                   TIME: 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS                                                 LOCATION: 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2017                                                                                    EMPLOYEE: 
OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION BOARD ROOM 
400 ENCINAL AVENUE, SANTA CRUZ, CA. 


 


 
AGENDA 


 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting 8th Nov 2017 - Page 6 of 6 


12. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, 
CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 


6 of 332







 


 


    
 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


October 11, 2017 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. in the Board Room of 
the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:30 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx   Claudia Vestal 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Provisional Board Member Candidates: Robert Darrow; Linnaea Ann Holgers; Cynthia Hall Ranii; Olga de Santa 
Anna 
Members of the Audience 
 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Special 
Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
None 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
5.2.1. Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133 Mission 
Street in Santa Cruz, CA.  The Board of Education will return to Closed Session following the 
provisional board member appointment to continue discussion and provide direction. 


 


7 of 332







 


 


 
 
 
 


ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 
6.1. Interview Applicants for Provisional Board Member Appointment 


The Board President and each Trustee presented one question to the four applicants.  Each applicant 
was provided three minutes to answer the question, and the first respondent rotated with each 
question.  Following the responses to all six questions, Superintendent Munro offered each candidate 
three minutes to provide a closing statement to the Trustees and provide additional information 
regarding their qualifications for the position. 
 
Public Comments: 
Many people in the audience spoke to advocate for a particular candidate. 
 


6.2. Discussion and Deliberation by the Trustees regarding Applicant Interviews 
Board President Tracy-Proulx opened the discussion/deliberation with a statement that the district is in 
the wonderful position of having an embarrassment of riches in these four applicants.  Board President 
Tracy-Proulx offered kudos to all applicants for having a very public job interview.  All candidates are 
qualified for this appointment. 
 
Board Member Vestal stated that she will be seeking someone who has a great deal of budget 
experience.  Ms. Vestal shared that any of the applicants would be a wonderful addition to the Board 
of Education – what shone through each candidate’s responses was a very collaborative nature. 
 
Board Member Perez-Granados communicated that all four candidates are very talented; a colleague 
who understands the Santa Cruz Latino community would be of great benefit to the Board of 
Education.  Dr. Perez-Granados commented that no matter how this vote turns out, the Trustees will 
have a wonderful colleague and that is heartening. 
 
Board Member Coonerty shared that a person who has small children and works in the community 
could be of great value; all of the candidates brings great value and the Trustees are so pleased that 
applicants of such high quality are interested in this appointment.  Dr. Coonerty also stated that all 
Trustees learn on the job, so past knowledge is not the only important criteria – fresh ideas can also be 
of value. 
 
Board Member Threet related that each person brings a diverse value and reflects our community 
history; however, sometimes it is an attribute to bring a different experience from a kind and caring 
person into the mix. 
 
Board Member Shonick agreed with Dr. Perez-Granados that the board would benefit from a person 
who has shared the Latino immigrant experience with a significant number of our students and family 
members.  Santa Cruz City Schools has a substantial number of boys and girls who would benefit from 
a role model who looks like them, who speaks their language and who understands them. 


 
 
 


8 of 332







 


 


6.3. Vote on Provisional Appointment and Announce New Board Member 
While the Board Members were reviewing their notes for a vote, Superintendent Munro explained the 
voting process.   Each Board Member has several numbered ballot cards.  At this time, each Trustee 
will write the name of their candidate of choice on Ballot #1.  The ballot cards will be passed to 
Superintendent Munro and she will read them.  If there are four votes for one individual, voting is over.  
If not, deliberations will continue and voting will take place again.  The Superintendent extended her 
thanks to each applicant and expressed her wish to engage all of them in some significant way in our 
district because they bring great value to our school community. 
 
After collecting the ballot cards for Round #1 Voting, the Superintendent announced that voting was 
over, as one candidate did have four votes. 
 
Votes: 
Board Member Shonick: Olga de Santa Anna 
Board Member Threet: Cynthia Hall Ranii 
Board Member Perez-Granados: Olga de Santa Anna 
Board Member Vestal: Cynthia Hall Ranii 
Board Member Coonerty: Cynthia Hall Ranii 
Board President Tracy-Proulx: Cynthia Hall Ranii 
 
Superintendent Munro announced the newly appointed Provisional Board Member is Cynthia Hall 
Ranii.  Dr. Ranii will be sworn in for her position at the Regular Meeting on October 18, 2017. 


 
7. Adjournment of Open Session 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education for this Open Session 
Meeting, Board President Tracy-Proulx adjourned the Open Session of this Special Meeting at 8:05 p.m. 


 
8. Return to Closed Session 
 The Board of Education returned to Closed Session at 8:06 p.m. 
 
9. Report of Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133 Mission 
Street in Santa Cruz, CA and provided direction to District Negotiator Gaffney. 


 
10. Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education this evening, Board President 
Tracy-Proulx adjourned this Special Meeting at 8:56 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on October 18, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget/Student Discipline on November 1, 2017, 6:00 p.m., 
will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on November 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will 
be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9 of 332







 


 


5. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 2018, 
6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 
 
 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


10 of 332



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





 


 


    
 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


October 18, 2017 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. in the Board Room of 
the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Closed Session Oath of Office for Board Member Ranii 
In order to have Dr. Ranii attend the Closed Session Meeting, Superintendent Munro informally administered 
the Oath of Office. 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:34 p.m. in the County 
Office of Education Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii  Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx  Claudia Vestal 
 
Student Representative Werlin-Martinez, Santa Cruz High School 
Student Representative Smith, Harbor High School  
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular 
Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
In order to allow the Bartos Architecture Team Members to get on the road as early as possible, Item 8.3.4. 
New Business: Bartos Bond Projects Update & Action on Belli Agreement Amendment to the Harbor High 
School Field Project will immediately follow Item 8.3.2. Staff Report: California Assessment of Student 
Performance and Progress (CAASPP). 
 
 
 


11 of 332







 


 


Oath of Office for new Board Member Cynthia Ranii 
County Office of Education Superintendent Watkins administered the formal Oath of Office for new Board 
member Cynthia Ranii. 
 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 


None 
 


SUPERINTENDENT’S AND STUDENT REPRESENTATIVES’ REPORTS 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro welcomed Trustee Ranii to the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education, and read 
aloud a letter of congratulations sent by Superintendent Anthony Ranii of the Montecito Unified School 
District.  On October 16, Superintendent Munro, as well as Ms. Parks and Mr. Wells, were invited to join the 
GSCFT in a listening session with elementary teachers.  It was a great opportunity to from team members, and 
we thank GSCFT President Carlson for the opportunity/invitation.  The Superintendent reported a successful 
October 16 Parent Leader Meeting with approximately 25 parent leaders from across the district.  The district 
team was able to share a bit about current district focus and projects, but, most importantly, to listen to 
parent concerns and answer questions.  Per parent leader request, the next meeting will take place in 
November 2017.  Superintendent Munro and Ms. Parks will join the leadership of both the GSCFT and the 
SCCCE for the ABC Unified Labor Management Conference next week.  Cal Trans accidentally cut the ATT 
internet lines while fighting the fire in Boulder Creek yesterday, and we apologize for any delays in responding 
to emails, etc. during the repair period.  The Superintendent closed her report with the sad news that 
longtime district supporter and friend Dr. Jim Logsdon passed away on Sunday, October 15.  Dr. Logsdon was 
deeply committed to public education, our students and our families.  He will be greatly missed by many in our 
community.  
 
Student Representatives’ Reports 
Student Representative Werlin-Martinez reported that last week was Spirit Week at Santa Cruz High School 
and it might have been the most spirited week ever!  Homecoming was cancelled due to poor air quality, but 
students are excited for the rescheduled events. 
 
Student Representative Smith reported that students are looking forward to homecoming events next week 
and many students participated in Club Rush on Friday, October 13. 
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
Board Members’ Reports 
Board Member Threet welcomed Dr. Ranii to the Board of Education and thanked her for stepping forward.  
Ms. Threet thanked Superintendent Munro and Board President Tracy-Proulx for bringing forward an excellent 
vehicle to make a selection for the provisional appointment to the Board of Education.  Trustee Threet 
attended the water polo match between Soquel and Santa Cruz High Schools, and is hoping students have an 
exciting time at the upcoming rescheduled Santa Cruz High School Homecoming events. 
 
Board Member Perez-Granados welcomed Dr. Ranii to the Board of Education. 
 
Board Member Ranii thanked the Trustees and Superintendent Munro for a wonderful process selection for 
the provisional appointment to the Board of Education and thanked each Trustee for taking the time to work 


12 of 332







 


 


with her.  Dr. Ranii is pleased to be part of Santa Cruz City Schools and looks forward to serving the school 
community. 
 
Board Member Vestal welcomed Dr. Ranii to the Board of Education.  Ms. Vestal attended the Delta Board 
Meeting, at which the budget was approved and the Principal’s Goals were presented.  Schools Plus had a 
successful event.  This past year, each teacher who applied received at least a partial grant and Trustee Vestal 
highly encourages teachers to apply.  The grant cycle will begin again soon – applications are due November 
10.  Ms. Vestal attended the City/Schools Meeting and acknowledged Superintendent Munro for her 
collaboration with the City of Santa Cruz, and, in particular, with the Santa Cruz Police Department and the 
Parks and Recreation Department.  Trustee Vestal met with Food Services and will attend the next Wellness 
Meeting on November 2, 6:00 p.m., at Harbor High School.  Ms. Vestal visited classrooms with Trustee Shonick 
and Superintendent Munro.  Trustee Vestal will fondly remember Dr. Logsdon – he was dedicated to Santa 
Cruz City Schools and wrote many letters to the Editor of the Santa Cruz Sentinel Newspaper on behalf of the 
district. 
 
Board Member Coonerty asked Student Werlin-Martinez to let the Trustees know if the postponement of the 
Homecoming events and festivities affects the ability to fundraise for the Winter Formal Dance/Event.  Dr. 
Coonerty reported that when she heard of the passing of Dr. Jim Logsdon she immediately thought of 
donating to the Santa Cruz High School Band program, as this was one of his favorite student programs.  Dr. 
Coonerty encouraged folks to donate in his honor.  Dr. Logsdon made real life-long connections with many of 
our students and families.  God Bless you Jim.  Welcome Dr. Ranii.  Happy Birthday GSCFT President Carlson. 
 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed Dr. Ranii to the Board of Education and acknowledged the Board 
Members for the great process used last week to make the provisional board member appointment. 
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. MSP (Ranii/Perez-Granados) 6-0-1, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of the Regular 


Meeting on September 27, 2017.  Board Member Ranii abstained from this vote as she was not present 
at the meeting.  Students Smith and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 


Consent Agenda 
Board Member Threet had comments for Mr. Wells regarding Item 8.1.6. Williams Quarterly Report.  Board 
Members Coonerty and Perez-Granados asked questions about Item 8.1.8.1.1. AVID Contract and 
Superintendent Munro provided the information they required to vote on this matter.  Dr. Coonerty 
requested additional information on Special Education Contracts Items 8.1.8.1.5., 8.1.8.1.6., 8.1.8.1.7., 
8.1.8.1.8., and 8.1.8.1.9.  Superintendent Munro and Mr. Wells provided the information requested for Dr. 
Coonerty to make a vote on these matters.   Board Member Shonick asked for Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, 
Quotes and Bids and Item 8.1.7. Budget Development Calendar to be pulled for a separate discussion and 
vote.  Mr. Shonick moved approval of the Consent Agenda, consisting of: Item 8.1.1. Personnel Actions – 
Certificated; Item 8.1.2. Personnel Actions – Classified; Item 8.1.4. Warrant Register; Item 8.1.5. Budget 
Transfers; Item 8.1.6. Williams Quarterly Report; Item 8.1.8.1.1. Ed Services/Curriculum: Contract-AVID; Item 
8.1.8.1.2. Ed Services/Curriculum: Contract-UCSC Work Study; Item 8.1.8.1.3. Ed Services/Monarch 
Elementary: CSA-Sarah Rapp; Item 8.1.8.1.4. Ed Services/Santa Cruz HS: CSA-Jewish Family & Children’s Center 
Holocaust Speaker; Item 8.1.8.1.5. Ed Services/Special Education: CSA-FAST Cantonese Interpreter; Item 
8.1.8.1.6. Ed Services/Special Education: APS-ARI School Psych Services; Item 8.1.8.1.7. Ed Services/Special 
Education: APS-Jennifer Jaeger PT; Item 8.1.8.1.8. Ed Services/Special Education: APS-DLS Specialized Services; 


13 of 332







 


 


Item 8.1.8.1.9. Ed Services/Special Education: APS for providers for district students @ private schools-
required by ISPs; Item 8.1.8.2.1. Business/Transportation: CSA-Russell Williamson Bus Driver Training; Item 
8.1.8.2.2. Business/IT: Contract-Blackboard Software; Item 8.1.8.2.3. Business/Facilities: Agreement-Bogard 
Construction; Item 8.1.9. New Bond Oversight Committee Member.  Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the motion.  
The motion was approved by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes  Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx   Vestal – Yes 
 
Student Representative Smith abstained from a recommendation on this matter and Student  
Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 
Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes 
Board Members Shonick and Threet had questions and comments about the Facilities Master Plan projected 
costs for site projects vs. actual costs when the project work begins 12+ months after bond measures were 
approved by local voters.  Mr. Gaffney agreed to provide overage information to the Trustees in order to 
facilitate exemplary fiduciary responsibility on behalf of the Board of Education.   Mr. Shonick moved approval 
of Item 8.1.3. Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes and Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the motion.   The motion 
was approved by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes  Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx   Vestal – Yes 
 
Students Smith and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 
Item 8.1.7. Budget Development Calendar 
Board Member Shonick would like to ensure that after the 2018-19 Budget is provided for a Public Hearing on 
June 13, 2018 and approved by the Board of Education on June 13, 2018, no additional items could be added 
to the budget after the June 13 date.  Mr. Shonick moved approval of the Item 8.1.7. Budget Development 
Calendar with the following provisional language: for members of the public, the June 13, 2018 Public Hearing 
for the Budget is the final opportunity for review and discussion of the budget that will be approved on June 
20, 2018; for the Trustees, the Review and Approval of the Budget by the Trustees on June 13, 2018 is the final 
opportunity for review and discussion of any budget items that will be approved on June 20, 2018.  Board 
Member Threet seconded the motion.   The motion was approved by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes  Shonick – Yes   
  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx   Vestal – Yes 
 
Students Smith and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 
8.2.1.  Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education heard information regarding Expulsion 3-17-18 for a vote later 
this evening in Open Session. 


 2. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133  
 Mission Street in Santa Cruz, CA and the Board of Education provided direction on these 


matters. 
3. The Board of Education provided direction on Public Employee 


Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint (Govt. Code Section 54957). 
4. The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 


Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 


14 of 332







 


 


5. The Board of Education provided direction to Superintendent Munro regarding labor 
negotiations (Govt. Code 54957.6) 


 
8.2.2.1. Vote on Expulsion 


1. MSP (Coonerty/Ranii) 7-0, the Board of Education approved Expulsion 3-17-18 as 
submitted by Mr. Wells. 


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


8.3.1. Staff Report: Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update: Newcomer Programs 
Elementary Curriculum Director Robb and district teachers Mulligan and Burke reported to the Board 
of Education regarding this matter.   A significant number of our English Learners are newcomers, or 
students who are entering US schools for the first time. The number of newcomers has increased each 
year in the last three years, with the majority coming from El Salvador. Of all our 831 English Learners, 
13% or 107 students have arrived in the last two years. Of these students, 72% or 77 students attend 
Gault, Branciforte Middle, or Harbor High, all schools with additional Newcomer supports in place.   
School staff at all sites are key in providing support to our newcomer students.  Staff address student 
health, scheduling, family support, and social emotional support. ELIRTs (English Learner Instructional 
Resource Teachers) are on site at least once each week to provide support in planning instruction, 
securing materials and setting up programs for newcomers’ success.  Our school community 
coordinators are key liaisons to support students and their families in orienting our newcomers to 
school in the United States. District nurses and social workers are in direct contact with our newcomer 
students providing supports.  All of the staff serve all of our English Language Learners and Spanish 
speaking families.  Newcomer progress is monitored in our twice yearly Language Review team 
meetings. At these meetings, we discuss the progress and placement of each newcomer student 
individually.  Progress is measured by the English Learner Progress Profile, English Language progress 
on CELDT and ELPAC, and grades. We monitor that a student make a year’s growth in English in a year’s 
time. Necessary adjustments are made at each Language Review team meeting.  Newcomers are also 
counted in all of our district metrics including graduation rate, A-G completion, and attendance. 
Because newcomer numbers are relatively small, these data points can vary tremendously from year to 
year.  This report was informational in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education 
regarding this matter.   


 
8.3.2. Staff Report: California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress (CAASPP) 


Secondary Curriculum Director Hodges provided this update to the Trustees.  The 2016-17 school year 
marked the third year of California's statewide student assessment system.   Smarter Balanced 
Assessments incorporate summative assessments in grades 3 through 8 and grade 11 in English 
Language Arts/Literacy and Mathematics. The purpose of these assessments is to give students, 
parents, teachers, schools and districts information regarding individual students’ levels of proficiency 
as well as trends in school and district proficiency data in reference to the California Common Core 
State Standards.  Assessments are used as a data point to help us determine if we are getting closer to 
closing the achievement gap.  For each grade level and subject area, students receive a score from 
approximately 2000 to 3000. The overall score falls into one of four achievement levels: Standard 
Exceeded, Standard Met, Standard Nearly Met, and Standard Not Met.  This report was informational 
in nature and no actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 
 


15 of 332







 


 


8.3.4. New Business: Bartos Bond Projects Update & Action on the Belli Amendment to the Harbor High 
School Field Project 
Mark Bartos reported on Bond Measures A & B projects updates.  Meetings with site planning review 
committees continue to develop and define projects, schedules and anticipated costs.  Team members 
Curtis Monette, Laszlo Petrik, Monica Landaverde and Neal Sellers were also on hand to answer questions.   
 
Facilities Director Miller presented the revised Belli Architects Agreement for Professional Services for 
the Harbor High Athletic Fields project.  After thorough assessment, costs for this project have run 
much higher than the estimate in the Facilities Master Plan.  The presented agreement reduces the 
scope of work to better align with the budget specified in the Master Plan that was presented to the 
community in 2016.  MSP (Shonick/Threet) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the Belli Agreement 
Amendment.  Students Smith and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 


 
8.3.3. Staff Report: Preliminary CBEDS Report 2017-18 
 Mr. Gaffney reported that the California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS) is an annual data 


collection administered the first Wednesday in October.  This year CBEDS day was October 4th.  The 
purpose of CBEDS is to collect demographic information on students, faculty and district employees.  
The District as a whole has decreased enrollment from 2016-17 to 2017-18 by 56 students. The 
Elementary District (grades Pre-K – 6), including Bay View, DeLaveaga, Gault, and Westlake, AFE 
(grades K-6), Monarch, as well as 6th graders from Branciforte Middle and Mission Hill Middle, 
decreased enrollment by 106 students from last year. The Secondary District (grades 7-12), including 
Branciforte and Mission Hill Middle Schools (grades 7-8) Harbor, Santa Cruz, Soquel, Costanoa High 
Schools (grades 9-12) and ARK and AFE (grades 7-12) increased by 52 students.  The overall projections 
provided by DecisionInsite were extremely accurate.  This report was informational in nature and no 
actions were taken by the Board of Education regarding this matter. 


 
8.3.5. New Business: Resolution 04-17-18 Week of the School Administrator 


Superintendent Munro reported the District is very pleased to announce the week of November 27 as 
the SCCS Week of the School Administrator, and recommends approval of this annual resolution.  Mr. 
Shonick moved approval of Resolution 04-17-18 and Dr. Perez-Granados seconded the motion.   The 
motion was approved by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes  Shonick – Yes  


   Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx   Vestal – Yes 
 


Students Smith and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 
8.3.6. New Business: Resolution 05-17-18 Week of the Certificated and Week of the Classified Employee 


Superintendent Munro reported that several years ago Santa Cruz City Schools transitioned from the 
National and State Day of the Teacher to celebrating our district teachers for an entire week.  This year, 
that week will start on May 7 and the Week of the Classified Employee will begin on May 21.  Approval 
of this resolution is highly recommended.  Mr. Shonick moved approval of Resolution 05-17-18 and Ms. 
Threet seconded the motion.   The motion was approved by roll call vote, as follows: 
Roll Call Vote: Coonerty – Yes Perez-Granados – Yes  Ranii – Yes  Shonick – Yes  


   Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx   Vestal – Yes 
 


Students Smith and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 
 


16 of 332







 


 


 
8.3.7. New Business: Board Policy Updates – First and/or Final Reading 


New and revised policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board policy book updating 
process, which sends policies for review to participating districts approximately six times per year.  
These recommendations reflect recent changes in education code and/or case law.  The policies have 
been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been 
included.  MSP (Perez-Granados/Vestal) 7-0, the Board of Education approved the new and/or revised 
policies for first reading.  These policies will return to the Trustees on November 8, 2017 for final 
review and approval.  Students Smith and Werlin-Martinez recommended a yes vote on this matter. 


 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Tracy-Proulx 
adjourned this Regular Meeting at 9:58 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Student Discipline/Budget on November 1, 2017, 6:30 p.m., 
will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting on November 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will 
be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


4. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 2018, 
6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


16. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


17 of 332







 


 


 
 
 
 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


18 of 332



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





 


 


    
 MINUTES OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
STUDY SESSION: STUDENT DISCIPLINE/BUDGET 


November 1, 2017 
 
 
 
 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:32 p.m. in the Harbor High 
School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Tracy-Proulx called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:36 p.m. in the Harbor 
High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty Deedee Perez-Granados Cynthia Ranii  Jeremy Shonick    
Patty Threet  Deb Tracy-Proulx   Claudia Vestal 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Eileen Brown, Director, Student Services 
Stacy O’Farrell, Director, Special Education 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Tracy-Proulx welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Study 
Session Meeting of the Board of Education.  
 
Agenda Changes 
None 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None 
 
5.1. Closed Session Actions 


1. The Board of Education conferred regarding the properties at 255 Swift Street and 133 Mission 
Street in Santa Cruz, CA.   


 
 
 
 


19 of 332







 


 


 
ITEMS of BUSINESS to be TRANSACTED and/or DISCUSSED 


5.2.1. Study Session: Student Discipline 
Student Services Director Brown reported to the Trustees regarding this matter.  Information 
presented included: the student discipline process from suspension through expulsion; the Manifest 
Determination process; suspension data disaggregated by ethnicity as well as comparisons to district 
demographic data; suspension data disaggregated by students with disabilities (SWD) – including 
Special Education and 504 students; suspension data disaggregated by behavior incidents; expulsion 
data disaggregated by ethnicity; expulsion data disaggregated by SWD; expulsion data disaggregated 
by incident; information on suspended vs. full expulsions; a chart showing the number of suspensions 
for each year since 2010 as well as the California Data Dashboard for suspensions for 2017. 
 
Board Members made comments, asked questions and discussed Santa Cruz City Schools student 
discipline practices and procedures and federal laws and requirements around student discipline.   
Directors Brown and O’Farrell provided information as necessary.   Board Members had more 
questions regarding this subject matter than time allowed, so it was agreed that Board Members 
would send additional questions to Superintendent Munro, who will gather requested information and 
send responses to the Trustees. 


 
5.2.2. Study Session: Budget 


Mr. Gaffney reported to the Board of Education regarding this matter.  Some of the information 
presented tonight is a prelude to the December 6th Budget Study Session.  Mr. Gaffney presented 
proposed guidelines for the development of the Santa Cruz City Schools budget, Superintendent 
Munro suggested that these guidelines could be formally adopted at the same time the 1st Interim 
Budget Report is presented to the Board of Education.  Mr. Gaffney submitted that the objective of this 
presentation is to provide the Trustees with: a brief summary of outstanding debt; revenue sources; 
fund balances; non-building capital needs; an estimate of curriculum master plan costs; a draft budget 
development calendar; a draft budget summary; revised budget development guidelines. 
Superintendent Munro shared that the Trustees would receive additional, more concrete budget 
information several weeks prior to a preliminary budget adoption. 
 
Board Members made comments, asked questions and discussed the information presented by Mr. 
Gaffney.  Superintendent Munro provided answers to several questions about the proposed guidelines 
for budget development.   


 
6. Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education this evening, Board President 
Tracy-Proulx adjourned the Study Session Meeting at 8:53 p.m. 


 
Board Meeting Schedule Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on November 8, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


2. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: Budget Development on December 6, 2017, 6:00 p.m., will 
be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


3. The Regular Meeting on December 13, 2017, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


20 of 332







 


 


4. The Regular Meeting on January 17, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


5. The Regular Meeting/Board Study Session: District Goals, Resources & Alignment on January 31, 2018, 
6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


6. The Regular Meeting on February 14, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


7. The Regular Meeting on February 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


8. The Regular Meeting on March 7, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


9. The Regular Meeting on March 28, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education 
Board Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


10. The Regular Meeting on April 18, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


11. The Regular Meeting on April 25, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


12. The Regular Meeting on May 9, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


13. The Regular Meeting/Board Self-Evaluation/Study Session for the Budget: May Revise on May 23, 
2018, 6:00 p.m., will be held in the Harbor High School Library, 300 La Fonda Avenue, Santa Cruz, CA. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 13, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


15. The Regular Meeting on June 20, 2018, 6:30 p.m., will be held in the County Office of Education Board 
Room, 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA. 


 
 
 
 


 


* For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting 
recording: 


 
 http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html  
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Deb Tracy-Proulx, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


21 of 332



http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html

http://www.sccs.santacruz.k12.ca.us/about-us/board-of-education/agendas-a-minutes.html





AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.1 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Certificated Personnel Actions 
 
DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM: Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
We recommend the Board of Trustees approve the certificated personnel actions as 
submitted. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached administrative and certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance 
with District policy and the negotiated contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


22 of 332







AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.1 
 


EXTRA WORK AGREEMENTS: 
 
Certificated: 
 
Nicholas Bianchini, After School Music Instruction, Branciforte Middle, 8/23/17 - 6/7/18, not to 
exceed 100 hours 
 
Joseph Culver, Cooking Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 9/27/17 - 12/13/17, not to 
exceed 28 hours 
 
Stephanie Engel, Dance Enrichment Provider, Harbor High, 10/18/17 - 12/22/17, not to exceed 
200 hours 
 
Gjon Feinstein, Chess Enrichment Provider, DeLaveaga Elementary, 9/25/17 - 4/30/18, not to 
exceed 33 hours 
 
Anna Gonzales, Arts and Crafts Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 9/27/17 - 12/13/17, not 
to exceed 22 hours 
 
Randi Isaacs, Creative Movement Enrichment Provider, DeLaveaga Elementary , 10/1/17 - 6/7/18, 
not to exceed 202 hours 
 
Randi Isaacs, Hip Hop Enrichment Provider, DeLaveaga Elementary , 10/1/17 - 12/13/12, not to 
exceed 12 hours 
 
Brian King, Outdoor Education Enrichment Provider, Costanoa Continuation, 10/20/17 - 6/7/18, 
not to exceed 296 hours 
 
Michael Laird, Martial Arts Enrichment Provider, Mission Hill Middle, 9/20/17 - 12/13/17, not to 
exceed 24 hours 
 
Daniel Le, Vocal Music Enrichment Provider, DeLaveaga Elementary , 10/1/17 - 6/7/18, not to 
exceed 100 hours 
 
Dustin Rodney-Sharp, Artistic Movement Enrichment, Branciforte Middle, 9/27/17 - 12/13/17, not 
to exceed 22 hours 
 
Celeste Robles Trujillo, Baile Folklorico Movement Enrichment, Branciforte Middle, 9/27/17 - 
12/13/17, not to exceed 18 hours 
 


 


 


 


23 of 332







AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.1 
 


EXTRA WORK AGREEMENTS: 
 
Certificated: 
 
Stephen Schnaar, Bike Club Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 9/27/17 - 12/13/17, not to 
exceed 22 hours 
 
Mario Singleterry, Working with Wood Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 9/27/17 - 
12/13/17, not to exceed 33 hours 
 
Aidee Valdez Martinez, Coding Enrichment Provider, Branciforte Middle, 9/27/17 - 12/13/17, not 
to exceed 12 hours 
 
 


24 of 332







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


     
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT 


  
  
  


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 
  
MEETING DATE:      November 8, 2017   
  
FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 
  
THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   
  
  
RECOMMENDATION: 


To approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 
  
  
BACKGROUND: 
The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 
SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  


  


25 of 332







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS 
 


Reviewed by Classified Personnel: Keneé Houser 11/1/2017 
 
•Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments• 
Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular): 
Clark Williams, Gabriella, Media Textbook Clerk - SQ, 17.5hrs/9mos, effective 10/9/2017 
Gaynor, James, Campus Supervisor - HH, 40hrs/9mos, effective 10/9/17 
Taylor, Kiefer, Accompanist - SQ, 12.5hrs/9mos, effective 9/19/17 
Promotion: 
None 
Voluntary Demotion:   
None 
Increase/Reduction in FTE - Months/Hours of Service: 
Gregoire, Paula, Instructional Technician - BV, from 3.8hrs/9mos to 5hrs/9mos, effective 
8/22/17 
Marquez, Belinda, Instructional Technician - BV, from 4hrs/9mo to 5.2hrs/9mos, effective 
7/1/17 
Stanford, Keyana, Campus Supervisor - MHMS, from 29.00hrs /9mos to 31.5hrs/9mos, effective 
8/22/17 
Young Jr., Donald, Custodian - from 20hrs/12mo - DL and 20hrs/12mo WL to 13.33hrs/12mo DL, 
13.34hrs/12mo WL, and 13.33hrs/12mos - BV, effective 10/1/17 
Additional FTE/Position:  
Harris, Cayla, Yard Duty - GA, 4.5hrs/wk-9mos, effective 9/18/17 
39-Mo Reinstatement: 
None 
39-Mo Reinstatement w/Increase in FTE:  
None 
63-Mo Reinstatement: 
None 
Transfer / Reinstate:  
None 
Transfer W/Increase FTE: 
White O’Hagen, Meghan, from Primary Intervention Student Assistant 15hrs/9mos to 
Instructional Technician 25hrs/9mos, effective 10/17/17 
Provisional Assignments (not to exceed 90 working days):  
None 


26 of 332







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Leave of Absence:  
None 
Separation from Service: 
McFadden, Valerie, Administrative Assistant - Confidential - ES, effective 12/29/17 
Retirement: 
None 
 
•Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes: • 
New EWA/Hourly Employees: 
Moore, Kozmik, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 18hrs, 10/1/17 to 12/22/17 
Rivera, Adriana, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 64hrs, 10/2/17 to 12/21/17 
Existing EWA/Hourly Employees: 
Adam, Monika, Instructional Technician - SPED, not to exceed 1hr, 10/16/17 
Appiano, Monica, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 74hrs,  10/2/17 to 12/21/17 
Arrazola, Ashley, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 70hrs, 10/2/17 to 12/22/17 
Ashton, Gerri, Instructional Technician - BS, not to exceed 16.5hrs, 10/17/17 to 1/9/18 
Avena, Hilario, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 61hrs, 10/9/17 to 12/22/17 
Boyd, Helena, Learning Assistant - BV, not to exceed 150hrs, 9/29/17 to 6/7/18 
Campos Solorio, Miriam, Learning Assistant - BS, not to exceed 375hrs, 10/30/17 to 5/25/18 
Delgado, Sandra, Yard Duty - BV, not to exceed 25hrs, 9/5/17 to 6/7/18 
Delgado, Sandra, Learning Assistant - BV, not to exceed 184hrs, 8/23/17 to 6/7/18 
Diaz, Beatriz, District Translation - SO, not to exceed 12hrs, 9/28/17 to 6/8/18 
Ericksen, Cynthia, Lead Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 3hrs, 7/1/17 to 10/31/17 
Forbes, Leticia, Instructional Technician - SC, not to exceed 3hrs, 8/23/17 to 8/24/17 
Haldi, Jacob, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 20hrs, 9/1/17 to 6/30/18 
Iglesias, Daisy, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 18hrs, 10/9/17 to 12/22/17 
Karan, Arjun, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 35hrs, 10/13/17 to 12/21/17 
Kinley, Diane, Instructional Technician, Elem. Intervention - BS, not to exceed 75hrs, 10/23/17 
to 12/21/17 
LeBlanc, Erica, Instructional Technician, Elem. Intervention - BV, not to exceed 300hrs, 9/15/17 
to 6/7/18 
Ledesma, Shane, Clerical Assistant - HR, not to exceed 210hrs, 9/5/17 to 2/1/18 
Lopez, Teodoro, Senior Custodian - BM, not to exceed 100hrs, 10/15/17 to 6/30/18 
Malaluan, Estrella, Learning Assistant - BV, not to exceed 360hrs, 8/28/17 to 6/7/18 
Martinez, Viviana, Learning Assistant - HH, not to exceed 37hrs, 10/2/17 to 12/22/17  
Miller, Lisa, Instructional Technician/PBS - WL, not to exceed 20hrs, 10/03/17 to 10/30/17 


27 of 332







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.2 


Nunez Lara, Luis, Substitute Custodian - MO, not to exceed 240hrs, 10/1/17 to 6/30/18 
Perez, Ricardo, Custodian - SC,. not to exceed 22hrs, 9/9/17 to 10/14/17 
Raynal, Vanessa, Food Service Worker - FS, not to exceed 30hrs, 9/1/17 to 6/30/18 
Shaffer-Tropeano, Lidia, Instructional Technician/LL - CU, not to exceed 45hrs, 9/18/17 to 
5/28/18 
Smith, Jennifer, Registrar - SQ, not to exceed 35hrs, 10/12/17 to 6/7/18 
Taylor, Keifer, Accompanist - HH, not to exceed 10hrs, 10/16/17 to 12/22/17 
Tolentino, Angelica, School Community Coordinator - SC, not to exceed 63hrs, 10/16/17 to 
6/7/18 
Limited Term Retiree (not to exceed 960 hours per Government Code 21153): 
Young, Jacqueline, Food Service Substitute - FS, not to exceed 200hrs, 10/1/17 to 6/30/18 
Out of Class: 
Sihler, Kris, Lead School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 144hrs, 10/16/17 to 11/17/17 
Sihler, Kris, Lead School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 20hrs, 10/16/17 to 11/17/17 
 
•Employment Actions Concerning Exempt Assignments from the Classified Service• 
Stipend: 
None  
Playground Recess Coach, Yard Duty, Child Care: 
Boyd, Helena, Yard Duty - BV, not to exceed 130hrs, 9/29/17 to 6/7/18 
Casillas, Micaila, Childcare - SO, not to exceed 10hrs, 10/5/17 to 6/8/18 
Mullins, Marsha, Yard Duty - DL, not to exceed 231hrs, 9/29/17 to 6/7/18 
Perez, Katya, Child Care - MH, not to exceed 30hrs, 9/1/17 to 6/10/18 
Quevedo, Vivian,  Yard Duty - BV, not to exceed 180hrs, 9/18/17 to 6/7/18 
Townsend, Maria, Yard Duty - BV, not to exceed 130hrs, 9/27/17 to 6/7/18 
 
•Eligibility Lists Established• 
Instructional Technician - Elementary Intervention 
Lead Food Service Worker 
Learning Assistant 
Personnel Assistant 
School Health Clerk 
 


28 of 332







Purchase Orders Over $2500 cover 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.3 


    
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Purchase Orders, Quotes and Bids  
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Asst. Supt., Business Services 
 
THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve the purchase orders, quotes and bids 
as submitted. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors.  The following definitions are provided to clarify the 
differences between purchase orders, quotes and bids: 
 


Purchase Orders: For purchases routine in nature and over $2,500 but under the amount 
required for a quote. 


 
Quotes:  When purchases will be $6,500 to $15,000 for contracted work or 


$12,000 to $88,300 for materials/supplies, several vendors are 
contacted for written quotations.  This process, though not as rigorous 
as a bid, insures that the District has involved more than one vendor 
and will secure a competitive price. 


 
Bids:  A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, 


distribution of written specification regarding the work or materials, 
and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, must be followed for 
contracted work projected to cost $15,000 and over, or for materials 
and supplies in the sum of $88,300 or over.  Bids are solicited from a 
wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is 
made to the lowest responsible bidder, the District receives the best 
price available. 


29 of 332







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


November 8, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 110817\PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


    
PO/REQ 


NO. SITE 
DOLLAR 


AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-01229 B40M $3,684.60 Belli Architectural Group Confirming for Payment – 
Professional services, Campus 
Modernization.  Bond Measure 
A. 


18-01231 Harbor High $13,853.24 Belli Architectural Group Confirming for Payment – 
Professional services, New 
Electrical.  Bond Measure A. 


18-01232 B40M $21,991.25 Belli Architectural Group  Confirming for Payment – 
Professional services for 
Relocatable Classroom.  Bond 
Measure A. 


18-01233 B40M $9,592.11 Gray Music Musical Instruments.  Monterey 
Peninsula MS After School grant. 


18-01252 Soquel High $36,280.87 Belli Architectural Group  Confirming for Payment – 
Professional services, Aquatic 
Center.  Bond Measure A. 


18-01253 Harbor High $24,648.90 California Premier 
Restoration 


Confirming for Payment – Pool 
House Water Damage/Rot 
repairs.  Insurance.   


18-01254 Harbor High $13,456.63 Belli Architectural Group Confirming for Payment - 
Professional services, Aquatic 
Center.  Bond Measure A. 


18-01256 Harbor High $189,626.64 Belli Architectural Group Confirming for Payment – 
Professional services, Field 
Improvements.  Bond Measure 
A. 


18-01286 Santa Cruz High $2,884.00 BCA Architects Confirming for Payment – 
Professional services, Gym 
Modernization.  Bond Measure 
A. 


18-01299 Harbor High $3,720.00 Bowman & Williams Confirming for Payment – 
Topographic Map of Pool Area.  
Bond Measure A. 


18-01300 B40SS $3,600.00 UCSC  Professional Development 
workshops for Ark teachers.  
LCFF. 


30 of 332







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


November 8, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 110817\PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-01308 Westlake $3,150.00 Code Naturally 90 Student licenses.  Lottery. 
18-00153 Various $7,000.00 Dilbeck & Sons Change Order for repairs as 


needed.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


18-00300 Various $3,500.00 Est2rad Customs Change Order for Golf Cart and 
other Equipment Repairs.  
Ongoing and Major Maint. 


18-00553 Various $2,500.00 North Glass Change Order for Window/Glass 
Repairs.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


18-01318 Curriculum $27,590.00 AVID Center District Leadership training for J. 
Hodges.  Unrestricted. 


18-01319 Harbor High $8,500.00 Balance Hydrologics Athletics Field Irrigation 
Improvements – Project 217081. 
Bond Measure A. 


18-01320 Various $6,000.00 Jet Mulch Open Order for Playground 
Wood Chips.  Ongoing and Major 
Maint. 


18-01321 District $52,811.75 BCA Architects Confirming for Payment – 
Professional Services, Multi-
Project Overhead.  Bond 
Measure A and B. 


18-01322 Soquel High $18,208.80 BCA Architects Confirming for Payment – 
Professional Services, Swimming 
Pool Project.  Bond Measure A.  


18-01323 B40MS $13,326.50 BCA Architects Confirming for Payment – 
Professional Services, 
Modernization Project.  Bond 
Measure A. 


18-01324 Santa Cruz High $20,080.80 BCA Architects Confirming for Payment – 
Professional Services, 
Modernization Project.  Bond 
Measure A. 


18-01325 Soquel High $18,933.25 BCA Architects Confirming for Payment – 
Professional Services, 
Modernization Project.  Bond 
Measure A. 


31 of 332







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


November 8, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 110817\PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-01326 B40SS $20,933.00 BCA Architects Confirming for Payment – 
Professional Services, 
Modernization Project.  Bond 
Measure A. 


18-01327 Mission Hill $7,025.83 CPM Educational Textbooks.  Lottery. 
18-01328 Harbor High $17,117.34 Garland Company Materials for the Pool Building 


Re-Roof Project.  Deferred 
Maintenance. 


18-01329 Soquel High $25,309.00 Cen-Con Inc. Construction services to install 
the new Marquee.  Facility Use 
Fees. 


18-01358 Harbor High $34,500.00 Stronger Building 
Services 


Swimming Pool Roof Installation. 
Deferred Maintenance. 


18-01353 Santa Cruz High $18,600.00 A&T Europe S.P.A. 16/17 Gutter Anchors.  Ongoing 
and Major Maint.   


18-01354 Bay View  $7,130.03 Garland Company Confirming for Payment - Re-
Roof Project.  Bond Measure B. 


18-01384 Harbor High $3,600.00 Dept. of Conservation Confirming for Payment – 
Geological Survey, Swimming 
Pool Replacement.  Bond 
Measure A. 


18-01397 Soquel High $26,764.54 Convergeone Chromebooks and Carts.  LCFF, 
Donations. 


18-01403 Transportation $3,500.00 The Driver’s Edge CSA – Behind the Wheel 
Instruction for Bus Drivers.  
Transportation – Home to 
School. 


18-01406 Gault $18,758.00 CDW Chromebooks and Carts.  Title I. 
18-01407 Harbor High $10,090.32 Convergeone Chromebooks and Cart.  Title I. 
18-01420 CIA $3,000.00 Ernest Tavella CSA for Admin. Coaching for 


Tracey Runeare.  Title II. 
18-01421 CIA $3,000.00 Lambertus Post CSA for Admin. Coaching for Ann 


Mekis.  Title II. 
18-01422 CIA $3,000.00 Carolyn Post CSA for Admin. Coaching for 


Yvette Garcia.  Title II. 


32 of 332







BOARD OF EDUCATION  
 


November 8, 2017 
 


PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 


 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 110817\PURCHASE ORDERS OVER $2500 LIST.DOC  


Approved by:         Approval Date:  
 


PO/REQ 
NO. SITE 


DOLLAR 
AMOUNT VENDOR MATERIALS, SERVICES, ETC. 


18-01465 Santa Cruz High $20,180.43 Convergeone Chromebooks and Carts.  LCFF, 
Donations. 


18-01476 Ed Services $3,377.00 CSLA For eight (8) to attend the CSLA 
Conference in February.  
Unrestricted. 


44816 Special Ed. $8,100.00 Margaret (Peggy) Barker, 
MS, ATP 


APS to provide assistive 
technology and assessment 
services to four students during 
the 2017-18 school yr. Special Ed 


44819 Special Ed. $11,172.00 Houghton Mifflin 
Harcourt 


District Psych/RSP Programs: 
Assessment materials for the 
2017-18 school year.  Special Ed. 


44820 Special Ed. $19,782.00 
 


Pearson Clinical 
 
 


District Psych/Speech Programs: 
Assessment materials for the 
2017-18 school year.  Special Ed. 


44821 Special Ed. $4,512.00 
 


Pro-Ed Inc. District Psych/Speech Programs: 
Assessment materials for the 
2017-18 school year.  Special Ed. 


44822 Special Ed $4,542.00 Western Psychological 
Services 


District Psych Program: 
Assessment materials for the 
2017-18 school year.  Special Ed. 


     
     
     
     
     
     


 


33 of 332







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.4 
 
Vendor warrants cover 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report.  The report covers vendor warrants 
issued from 10/6/17–10/30/17.  Hard copies of the report are available for public review at the 
Board Meeting.  
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


34 of 332







35 of 332







36 of 332







37 of 332







38 of 332







39 of 332







40 of 332







41 of 332







42 of 332







43 of 332







44 of 332







45 of 332







46 of 332







47 of 332







48 of 332







49 of 332







50 of 332







51 of 332







                          
                      
  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.5  
C:\Users\bssec\Desktop\Boardpad 110817\Budget Transfers Sept 2017 cover.docx 


 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approval of Budget Transfers  
 
MEETING DATE:   November 8, 2017 
  
FROM:               Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education approve 2017-2018 budget transfers dated 
from 10/1/17 through 10/31/17, BE#130556– 133894.  The report follows.  A hard copy of the 
report is available for public review at the Board Meeting. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ed Code 42600 requires that the Board approve budget transfers that are made between major 
expense object codes, or from reserves. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
  


52 of 332







53 of 332







54 of 332







55 of 332







56 of 332







57 of 332







58 of 332







59 of 332







60 of 332







61 of 332







62 of 332







63 of 332







64 of 332







65 of 332







66 of 332







67 of 332







68 of 332







69 of 332







70 of 332







71 of 332







72 of 332







73 of 332







74 of 332







75 of 332







76 of 332







77 of 332







78 of 332







79 of 332







80 of 332







81 of 332







82 of 332







83 of 332







84 of 332







85 of 332







86 of 332







87 of 332







88 of 332







89 of 332







90 of 332







91 of 332







92 of 332







93 of 332







94 of 332







95 of 332







96 of 332







97 of 332







98 of 332







99 of 332







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.6.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Gifts 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Acceptance of the following gifts donated to the Santa Cruz City School District. 
 
Bay View Elementary School 


 Shawn Danforth and Danielle Lewis donated $5500 - $1500 for the classrooms of Ms. 
Quevedo and Leigh/Chaput, and $4000 to be used at Principal Garcia’s discretion. 


 
Santa Cruz High School 


 The Englade family of Santa Cruz has donated $12,500 to the school on behalf of the 
Wilson family.  This welcome gift will be used to increase technology access for students 
and support the professional development of teachers’ technology integration in 
classrooms.    


 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to Board Policy/Regulation 3290, the Governing Board may accept on behalf of and 
for the District, any bequest, gift of money or gift of property, valued at $100 or more, that is 
presented to the District.  A letter of appreciation will be sent to the donors.  
 


100 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Physical Education Waiver – The Ark 
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Physical Education Waiver for a student at The Ark. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Small Schools administration is requesting a waiver of 20 units of the District’s Physical 
Education graduation requirement for a student who, due to a serious health condition, is 
unable to fulfill the P.E. requirement.  Education Code 51241 authorizes the governing board of 
a school district to waive this requirement under certain circumstances, as outlined in the 
attached request. 


 
The student’s name has been redacted to protect the student’s privacy. 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


101 of 332







10
2 


of
 3


32







10
3 


of
 3


32







PTOC appointments cover 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.8 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Approve Appointment of Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Members 
 
MEETING DATE: October 18, 2017 


 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the appointments of Olga de Santa Anna, Linnaea Holgers, Isabelle Tuncer, Rob 
Darrow and Carolyn MacQuiddy McKee to the 2017-18 Parcel Tax Oversight Committee (PTOC). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Santa Cruz City Elementary and High School Districts students are fortunate to receive the 
benefits of several parcel taxes: Measures I and J, approved by local voters on June 5, 2012 and 
Measures O and P, approved on November 17, 2015.  The Measures’ ballot language also 
specifically provided for an independent community oversight committee to be appointed by 
the Governing Board to oversee all expenditures funded by the Measures to ensure that funds 
are used only for the purposes approved by the voters and to report on an annual basis to the 
community on how these funds have been spent. 


 
The revised PTOC Bylaws approved by the Board on 9/13/17 specified that the Committee shall 
be comprised of individuals who are at least 18 years of age and who either live or work within 
the boundaries of the District.  No employee, official, vendor, contractor, or consultant of the 
District may be appointed to the Committee. PTOC will be composed of five to seven (5-7) 
members to be approved by the Board, including: 
 


A. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be active in a business organization 
representing the business community of the District;  


B. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a member of the community at large;  
C. One member shall, at the time of the appointment, be a member of a Senior Citizen’s 


Organization,   
D. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child 


enrolled in the Elementary District;  
E. One member shall, at the time of appointment, be a parent or guardian of a child 


enrolled in the High School District.  
 


Duties of the Committee include: 
• Meet at least four times per year, following Brown Act procedures. 


104 of 332







PTOC appointments cover 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.8 


• Receive and review expenditure reports produced by the District to ensure that parcel 
tax revenue was expended in accordance with the purposes set forth in Measures I, J O 
and P ballot language. 


• Provide an annual report to the Governing Board 
 
The District has received applications from five candidates, including Olga de Santa Anna, 
Linnaea Holgers, Isabelle Tuncer, Rob Darrow and Carolyn MacQuiddy McKee.  Their 
applications are included with this agenda item.  It is proposed that they be appointed to the 
Board as follows: 
 


• Olga de Santa Anna as Senior Citizen Organization representative 
• Linnaea Holgers as Business representative 
• Isabelle Tuncer as Parent of a SCCS High School student 
• Rob Darrow as a Member of the Community at Large 
• Carolyn MacQuiddy McKee as parent of a SCCS Elementary School student 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 


  This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
  
 Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


105 of 332







106 of 332







107 of 332







108 of 332







Santa Cruz City Schools Parcel Tax Oversight Committee Application for 
Appointment Rev. 10/6/17  
 
Duties  
Duties of the Committee will include:  
• _Meet at least four times per year, following Brown Act procedures.  
• _Receive and review expenditure reports produced by the District to ensure that parcel tax revenue was 
expended in accordance with the purposes set forth in Measures I, J, O and P ballot language.  
• _Provide an annual report to the Governing Board.  
 
General Information  
NAME:  Rob W. Darrow  
Home Address: 115 Atherton Loop, Aptos, CA  95003  
PHONE: (home/cell) 559-351-5928  
EMAIL: Robdarrow@aol.com 
 


EMPLOYER INFORMATION:  
Occupation: Self Employed / College and Career Counselor  
Name of Employer: ForwarDirections College and Career Counseling 
(www.forwardirections.org)  
Work Address: 115 Atherton Loop, Aptos, CA  95003 
Work Telephone: 559-351-5928  
 


Committee Membership Designation  
Committee bylaws require that representatives of designated groups fill certain positions on the 
Parcel Tax Oversight Committee. Please indicate the Committee designation(s) for which you 
are qualified, check all that apply:  
 


  _Business Representative: (Business Affiliation)  
 XX Community at Large: 115 Atherton Loop, Aptos, CA  95003  
  _Senior Citizen Organization Representative: (Name of Organization)  
  _Parent of SCCS Elementary Student: (Student’s Name, Grade & School attended)  
  _Parent of SCCS High School Student: (Student’s Name, Grade & School attended)  
 
 
Educational Background 


Post High School Education / Training / College / University:  
2015    College Admissions Counseling Certificate. University of California, 
Riverside.  
2010   Ed.D. Educational Leadership, California State University, Fresno 
1997  Library Media Teacher Credential, Fresno Pacific University 
1986   M.A.   Educational Administration and Supervision, San Jose State 
University 
1978   B.A.    Political Science, University of California, Riverside 
1974  Graduate, Harbor High School, SCCS  
 
  


109 of 332







Additional Information  
Have you ever been employed by Santa Cruz City Schools?  
XX Yes _____ No (I am on the SCCS substitute teacher list)  
 
Describe your community service background including participation and membership in local 
and civic organizations. (You may attach additional page or resume.)  


2015-2017: SCCS district LGBT Task Force chaired by Eileen Brown to identify 
support systems for LGBT students across the district.  
2014-2017:  Director of Research and Professional Learning for the Safe 
Schools Project that support Santa Cruz County Schools in being more safe 
and inclusive – especially for LGBT students. 
2016-2017: Treasurer, Queer Youth Task Force 
2014-2017: Grant Writer, Safe Schools Project 
2014-2017: Member, Resurrection Catholic Community COPA – Communities 
Organized for Power in Action – Tri-county area. 
2017: State Textbook Adoption Committee, History-Social Science Textbooks 


 
 
Describe your professional skills and training in finance, facilities, and/or construction or other 
relevant experience, including participation in professional organizations. (You may attach 
additional page or resume.)  


I have served as a grant project director for multiple grants, and served as a 
school administrator. In those roles I oversaw multi-million dollar grants that 
included budgeting and reporting.  
I understand how school districts are funded and understand the reasons and 
importance of local parcel taxes and bond measures if we are to ensure the 
quality of our schools in SCCS.   


 


 


Please answer the following questions  
1. How long have you been a resident within the boundaries of the District? _25 years_  
 
2. Have you or your children ever attended District schools? Yes  XX No __  
 
3. Do you have or have you had any other relatives or close friends who have attended District 
schools? Yes  XX  No  _ 
Comments: My friends have grand children at DeLaveaga Elementary  
 
4. Do you know of any reason, such as a potential conflict of interest (real estate, business, 
litigation, etc.), which would adversely affect your ability to impartially serve on the Parcel Tax 
Oversight Committee? Yes  _No XX  


	  


110 of 332







Explain why you would like to be appointed to this committee:  
I am passionate about public education and have had a lifelong commitment 
to public education.  I can remember back as a member of the student council 
at Harbor High School, being part of a student committee that helped to build 
the Harbor swimming pool – I learned a bit about the type of capital that was 
needed to build a swimming pool then.  I grew up in a family that valued 
community service and the importance of public education and giving back to 
the community.  SCCS provided me with an excellent education with 
outstanding educators who were important role models in my life. I would like 
to share back a little of my expertise to support the implementation and 
oversight as part of the parcel tax oversight committee.  


 
 


 


Certification of Applicant  
I certify that answers and statements in this document are true and complete to the best of my 
knowledge and belief.  
 


Signature: Rob Darrow    Date:  October 30, 2017 
 
Completed applications must be received by the Santa Cruz City Schools District  
Attn: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services  
405 Old San Jose Rd.  
Soquel, CA 95073  
or at pgaffney@sccs.net  
If you have any questions, please contact Santa Cruz City Schools at (831) 429-3410, ext. 224 
	  


111 of 332







11
2 


of
 3


32







11
3 


of
 3


32







11
4 


of
 3


32







11
5 


of
 3


32







11
6 


of
 3


32







11
7 


of
 3


32







11
8 


of
 3


32







11
9 


of
 3


32







12
0 


of
 3


32







12
1 


of
 3


32







12
2 


of
 3


32







12
3 


of
 3


32







12
4 


of
 3


32







12
5 


of
 3


32







BOC appointment Richard Wyrsch 


AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.9 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Bond Oversight Committee Member  
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017  


 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the appointment of the Richard Wyrsch to the Bond Oversight Committee as a 
representative of the community at large. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In conjunction with Education Code Section 15278 and with the Bylaws adopted by the SCCS 
Board, the Board is requested to approve the appointment of Richard Wyrsch to the 
Measures A and B Citizens Bond Oversight Committee.  Richard is applying to fill the position 
of a citizen at large.  Each member will serve a term of two years. 


 
The District is continuing to accept applications from interested parties for a representative 
of a taxpayer’s organization.  When a candidate is identified, their application will be brought 
to the Board for approval. 
 


  This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
  
 Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


126 of 332







Santa Cruz City School District 
 


Application for Bond Oversight Committee 
 


The Board of Trustees of the Santa Cruz City School District is establishing a Citizens’ Bond 
Oversight Committee to monitor school construction activities associated with Measures A and 
B. 
 
Applicant’s Name:  
 
Home address:  
 
City/State/ZIP:  
 
Home Telephone:  
 
Work Telephone:  
 
Fax:  
 
Email:  
 
Proposition 39 requires that the Committee have at least seven members, with one 
member representing each of five categories.  Please check all that apply to you. 
 
1.  _____I am active in a business organization representing the business community located 
within the Santa Cruz City School District – Please specify: 
 
  
 
2.  _____I am active in a senior citizen’s organization – please specify: 
 
  
 
3.  _____I am a parent or guardian of a child enrolled in the Santa Cruz City School District.   
 
4.  _____I am active in a parent-teacher organization and a parent or guardian of a child 
enrolled in Santa Cruz City School District – please specify: 
 
  
 
5.  _____I am Active in a bona fide taxpayer’s organization.  Please specify: 
 
  
 
6.  _____I am not applying to meet one of the foregoing criteria; I am applying as a citizen at 
large. 
 


RIchard
Wyrsch


417 McCormick Avenue


Capitola, CA  95010


831-462-4841 — message only…not best way to contact me


831-251-5001 — best number to use


richardj.wyrsch@cemex.com


127 of 332



bssec

Typewritten Text



bssec

Typewritten Text



bssec

Typewritten Text



bssec

Typewritten Text



bssec

Typewritten Text

 



bssec

Typewritten Text



bssec

Typewritten Text



bssec

Typewritten Text

X



bssec

Typewritten Text



bssec

Typewritten Text







Please answer the following questions: 
 
1. Are you an employee of the Santa Cruz City School District?    YES  NO 


(Note: employees of the District are prohibited by law from being members of the Committee) 


 
2. Are you a vender, contractor or consultant to the Santa Cruz City  
 School District? YES NO 


(Note: vendors, contractors and consultants to the District are prohibited by law from serving on the Committee) 


 
3. Are you able to regularly attend meetings and complete a two-year term 
  as a member of the Committee and refrain from becoming an employee, 
 vendor, contractor or consultant to the District? YES NO 
 
4. Will you, to the best of your knowledge, be able to maintain qualification 
 in the membership category previously checked? YES NO 
 
Please provide any information that you believe would be helpful to the District in making its 
determination of Committee membership (for example, educational or professional background, 
knowledge of financial matters or construction, service on other boards or committees, or any 
other relevant information): 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
Signature of Applicant:       
Dated:         
 
 
 
 
 
This completed application must be received no later than 5:00 PM on ________, 2017 to: 
 


Kris Munro, Superintendent 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


405 Old San Jose Road 
Soquel, California 95073 


x


x


x


x


RIchard Wyrsch
11/3/17


128 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.10 
 
1st Qtr Investment Report 17-18 cover 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Investment Report for the Quarter Ending 9/30/17  
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the 1st Quarter Investment Report for 2017-18. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
SB564, effective January 1, 1996, requires local governments in California, including school 
districts, to make quarterly reports to the Governing Board on the investments of the agency. 
 
District cash for all funds is on deposit with and is invested by the Santa Cruz County Auditor-
Controller.  The report of interest rates for the period 7/1/17 through 9/30/17 is attached.  The 
Quarterly Investment Report from the Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Office is an insert to the 
Board agenda book.  
 
The quarterly interest rate that applies to all funds has been: 
 


    1st Q 2nd Q 3rd Q 4th Q    


   2011-12 0.542% 0.501% 0.449% 0.426%    


   2012-13 0.398% 0.374% 0.317% 0.293%    


   2013-14 0.324% 0.334% 0.384% 0.396%    


   2014-15 0.409% 0.425% 0.498% 0.517%    


   2015-16 0.623% 0.585% 0.676% 0.723%    


   2016-17 0.777% 0.764% 0.912% 0.965%    


   2017-18 0.977%       


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The table above shows the interest rates in all funds since 2011-12. The interest earned year to 
date through the 1st Quarter of 2017-18 was $36,497.58. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


129 of 332







MEMO
DATE:


TO: DISTRICT BUSINESS MANAGERS


FROM: Elizabeth Heimsoth, Account Specialist IV   466-5623


SUBJECT: 2017-2018 INTEREST SEPT 2017


The following summary of the Auditor - Controller's interest rates is provided for your information.
1ST QTR  2ND QTR


FY 17/18 JULY AUGUST SEPT. AVERAGE OCT. NOV. DEC. AVERAGE
0.979% 0.971% 0.981% 0.977% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%


3RD QTR 4TH QTR
JAN. FEB. MARCH AVERAGE APRIL MAY JUNE AVERAGE


0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000% 0.000%


 FY 17/18 0.977%


PRIOR YEARS AVERAGE - PROVIDED BELOW IS A LISTING OF THE ANNUALIZED
    INTEREST RATES FOR THE LAST 24 FISCAL YEARS.


YEAR RATE YEAR RATE YEAR RATE
FY 17/18 0.98% FY 09/10 0.81% FY 01/02 3.28%


FY 16/17 0.86% FY 08 /09 1.88% FY 00/01 6.28%


FY 15/16 0.65% FY 07/08 4.16% FY 99/00 5.82%


FY 14/15 0.45% FY 06/07 5.27% FY 98/99 5.40%


FY 13/14 0.36% FY 05/06 4.23% FY 97/98 5.57%


FY 12/13 0.35% FY 04/05 2.20% FY 96/97 5.58%


FY 11/12 0.49% FY 03/04 1.30% FY 95/96 5.13%


FY 10/11 0.59% FY 02/03 1.99% FY 94/95 5.09%


CC: Mary Hart 
       Jean Gardner


November 1, 2017


130 of 332







131 of 332







132 of 332







133 of 332







134 of 332







135 of 332







136 of 332







137 of 332







138 of 332







139 of 332







140 of 332







141 of 332







142 of 332







143 of 332







144 of 332







145 of 332







146 of 332







147 of 332







148 of 332







149 of 332







150 of 332







151 of 332







152 of 332







153 of 332







154 of 332







155 of 332







156 of 332







157 of 332







158 of 332







159 of 332







160 of 332







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.11. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM   Revised Job Description: Project Coordinator 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised job description. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This job description was revised to meet the current needs for assisting in the Maintenance, 
Operations and Facilities Department as well as the Finance Department in ensuring that bond 
work is completed and related bills are paid. The original job description alluded to journeyman 
requirements. The revised description emphasizes the billing and office work that relates to the 
bond. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


Prepared by Keneé Houser, Director, Classified Personnel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


161 of 332







 


 


 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
JOB DESCRIPTION 
PROJECT COORDINATOR 
Job Title: Project Coordinator 
 
Job Summary: 
Under the general direction of the Director of Maintenance, Operations and Transportation or 
his/her designee, within a broad framework of standard policies and procedures, acts as a liaison 
between district administrators, departments and the community to coordinate the technical 
aspects of projects involved in the maintenance, repair or alteration of district buildings, facilities 
and grounds; exercise independent judgment; establish and maintains positive working 
relationships with those contacted during the course of work; assist other maintenance personnel 
in the performance of their duties. 
 
Examples of Duties 
Acts as liaison between the Maintenance &Operations Department and district administration, 
contracts, architects, committees, parent groups and the community regarding the maintenance, 
construction and alteration of district facilities and grounds; coordinates technical aspects of 
projects; coordinates and oversees the district's facility planning and construction projects to 
insure quality work is performed in a timely and cost effective manner; evaluates and recommends 
improvements on updating equipment and facilities; maintains accurate records of work 
accomplished, in process and needing to be done; prepares and coordinates purchase orders for 
parts, supplies and materials; directs and coordinates the work of others in the performance of 
these duties as necessary; participates in available training in order to meet new technology 
standards; performs other duties as required. 
 
Employment Standards 
Training and Experience: Any combination of experience and training which would indicate 
possession of the knowledge, skills and abilities listed herein. 
Completion of the 12th grade or equivalent; at least three years of combined experience; must be 
knowledgeable in all areas of building and grounds trades as they relate to the construction, 
repair and maintenance of district facilities and grounds. Excellent interpersonal skills and a 
demonstrated ability to interact with others on a positive basis’s required. Coursework in the 
building and grounds trades, business management/organization, conflict resolution and/or 
related areas is desired. Bilingualism may be required. 
 
Knowledge:  
Knowledge of basic principles, methods and practices of bookkeeping and financial record keeping; 
modern office practices and procedures; operation of computers and accounting software,  the Microsoft 
suite, standard office machines and data base programs; proper English usage, grammar, punctuation and 
spelling. 


162 of 332







 


Abilities:  Ability to work flexible hours; maintain accurate work logs and records; 
understand and  carry out a variety of complex instructions in an independent manner; 
perform mathematical calculations; establish and maintain co-operative relationships with 
those contacted during the performance of required duties, including school personnel, 
students, parents and the community; maintain regular attendance.    
 
Physical Effort/Work Environment: Visual ability to read handwritten or typed documents, 
and the display screen of various office equipment and machines; ability to conduct verbal 
conversation in English and, possibly, a designated second language; hear normal range verbal 
conversation (approximately 60 decibels); sit, stand, stoop, kneel, bend and walk; sit for 
sustained periods of time; climb slopes, stairs, steps, ramps and ladders; lift up to 20 pounds; 
carry up to 20 pounds; exhibit full range of motion for shoulder external rotation and internal 
rotation, shoulder abduction and adduction, elbow flexion and extension, shoulder extension 
and flexion, hip flexion and extension and knee flexion; operate office machines and equipment 
in a safe and effective manner; demonstrate manual dexterity necessary to operate calculator, 
typewriter and/or computer keyboard at the required speed and accuracy; conduct frequent 
repetitive arm, hand and body motion; work in an indoor work environment. 
 


Licenses and Certificates: A valid Class C California Driver's License and evidence of 
eligibility for insurance is required; valid Class "A" California Driver's License and valid 
First Aid and CPR Certificate may be required.  


 
Approved by Personnel Commission:  ________ 
Approved by Governing Board:  ________ 
 


Salary Range:  39  
Revised:  10/2/2017  
Approved by Personnel Commission: 10/3/2017 
Approved by Governing Board: __________ 


163 of 332







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7 
contracts cover 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Contracts and Consultant Services Agreements 
 
MEETING DATE: October 18, 2017  
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Ratify contracts and consultant services agreements executed pursuant to Board Policy 3300. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On June 14, 2017, the Board of Education delegated authority to enter into contracts on behalf 
of Santa Cruz City Schools and to purchase supplies, materials, apparatus, equipment and 
services up to the amounts specified in Public Contract Code 20111 and Education Code 
Section 17605 to the Superintendent of Schools or designees, and required that the Board of 
Trustees ratify contracts within sixty (60) days of incurring the expense. 
 
The following contract is presented for ratification: 


1. Educational Services 
1. Educational Services/Curriculum, Information & Assessment – 


Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) Contract 
2. Educational Services/Curriculum, Information & Assessment – UCSC 


Work Study Program Contract 
3. Educational Services/Monarch Alternative Elementary – Consultant 


Services Agreement, Sarah Rapp, profession development for teachers of 
English Language Learners 


4. Educational Services/Santa Cruz High – Consultant Services Agreement, 
Jewish Family and Children’s Services, Holocaust speaker for student 
assembly  


5. Educational Services/Special Ed – Consultant Services Agreement, 
F.A.S.T., Cantonese Language Translation services required by law so 
parents can participate in child’s annual IEP 


6. Educational Services/Special Ed – Agreement for Professional Services, 
Assessment Resources  Inc., psychological evaluation services for up to 
20 Special Ed students, as mandated in their IEPs. 


7. Educational Services/Special Ed – Agreement for Professional Services, 
Jennifer Jaeger, MPT, assessment & physical therapy services for two 
Special Ed students, as mandated in their IEPs. 


8. Educational Services/Special Ed – Agreement for Professional Services, 
Developmental Learning Solutions, educational therapy & transition 


164 of 332







  AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.7 
contracts cover 


services for a Special Ed student, as mandated in the student’s IEP. 
9. Educational Services/Special Ed – Agreements for Professional Services 


for District Special Ed students at private schools as mandated by their 
Individual Service Plans.  Providers include Cynthia Rogers, speech 
language therapy services for two students; Katie Flanagan, academic 
support services for two students; Lisa Van Buskirk, behavior support 
services for a student; Rosemary Kendall, academic support services for 
two students; SpeechRighter Inc., speech/language therapy services for 
up to 11 students; Spring Hill School, academic support services to 
eligible students. 


2. Business Services 
1. Business Services/Transportation – Consultant Services Agreement, 


Russell A. Williamson, bus driver training and certification preparation. 
2. Business Services/Information Technology – Blackboard Mass 


Notifications and Teacher Messaging Contract 
3. Business Services/Facility Services – Bogard Construction, Agreement for 


Professional Services, consultation and assistance on construction 
projects. 


165 of 332







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.12.1.  


ASANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Santa Cruz College 
Commitment (S4C)/Santa Cruz City Schools: 7th Grade Field Trip 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the annual agreement as submitted.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
Each year, district students in grade 7 take a field trip to either CSUMB or UCSC as part of the 
district ongoing participation in Santa Cruz County College Commitment (S4C).  There is no 
charge to Santa Cruz City Schools from S4C, CSUMB or UCSC for providing to our students an 
exciting glimpse into the possibility of attending a university.  The 2017-18 MOU is provided for 
your review and approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The district will incur the cost of transportation to and from the events.  Past 
practice, using SCCS Transportation Department, provides an estimate of $1,000. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goal and its corresponding metrics: 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


166 of 332







16
7 


of
 3


32







16
8 


of
 3


32







16
9 


of
 3


32







17
0 


of
 3


32







 
SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Agreement For Professional Services – Special Education 
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM: Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the attached Agreement for Professional Services through the 2017-2018 summer and 
regular school year.  Due to the confidentiality regulations that protect the identity of disabled 
pupils, the student names have been omitted.  Copies of the agreement have been provided under 
separate cover for Board review. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Authorized request for an:   Assistive Technology Specialist who will serve four students in 
Special Education that require these services.  They are provided through Margaret (Peggy) R. 
Barker, MS, ATP and are mandated in each student’s IEP.  Service Period:  July 1, 2017 through 
June 30, 2018. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
$8,100.00 
Fund:  Special Education  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 
 
 


Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 
 
 


171 of 332







172 of 332







173 of 332







174 of 332







175 of 332







176 of 332







177 of 332







178 of 332







179 of 332







180 of 332







181 of 332







182 of 332







183 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.12.3.1 
 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Agreement with Wasinger Inspection Services for DSA Site 


Inspection Services at Adult Education School 
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Agreement with Wasinger Inspection Services for DSA Site Inspection Services at Adult 
Education School. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Adult Ed Portable (classroom #9) that was destroyed during last winter’s storms is being 
replaced with a new portable building and is required to have a site DSA Inspector of Record.  
Inspectors are certified by the Division of the State Architect (DSA) and then approved to work 
on specific projects. Wasinger Inspection Services Inc. is qualified to provide these services. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$2,350.00 will be reimbursed from the property and liability insurance claim in this matter. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller 


184 of 332







185 of 332







186 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.12.3.2 
 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Agreement with School Site Solutions, Inc. 
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Agreement with School Site Solutions, Inc. to perform California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA) compliance work for planned projects at each school site. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
CEQA certification is required by the Office of Public School Construction for current and 
upcoming projects at District sites.  School Site Solutions will provide services to bring the 
District into compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act for all our Master 
Planned projects on each site.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$145,600.00, to be paid from a combination from Measures A and B Bond Funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


Prepared by: Trevor Miller 


187 of 332







18
8 


of
 3


32







18
9 


of
 3


32







19
0 


of
 3


32







19
1 


of
 3


32







19
2 


of
 3


32







19
3 


of
 3


32







19
4 


of
 3


32







19
5 


of
 3


32







19
6 


of
 3


32







19
7 


of
 3


32







19
8 


of
 3


32







19
9 


of
 3


32







20
0 


of
 3


32







20
1 


of
 3


32







20
2 


of
 3


32







20
3 


of
 3


32







20
4 


of
 3


32







20
5 


of
 3


32







20
6 


of
 3


32







20
7 


of
 3


32







20
8 


of
 3


32







20
9 


of
 3


32







21
0 


of
 3


32







21
1 


of
 3


32







21
2 


of
 3


32







21
3 


of
 3


32







21
4 


of
 3


32







21
5 


of
 3


32







21
6 


of
 3


32







21
7 


of
 3


32







21
8 


of
 3


32







21
9 


of
 3


32







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.12.3.3 
crowe horwath measure b audit agrmt cover 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Approve Agreement with Crowe Horwath for Measure B General 


Obligation Bond Financial Audit Services 
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Agreement with Crowe Horwath for Measure B General Obligation Bond Financial 
Audit Services. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On August 23, 2017, the Board approved an agreement with Crowe Horwath for financial audit 
services regarding Measure A General Obligation bond financial statements for fiscal year 
2016-17.  At this meeting, an identical contract for Measure B financial audit services is 
presented for approval. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$5,000 - $7,500, to be paid from Measure B bond funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


220 of 332







221 of 332







222 of 332







223 of 332







224 of 332







225 of 332







226 of 332







227 of 332







228 of 332







229 of 332







230 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.12.3.4 
 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: GeoTrinity Consultants Contract – Soils Analysis at Natural Bridges 


Elementary 
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve contract with GeoTrinity Consultants, Inc. (GTC) for soils investigation and reports for 
the Natural Bridges Elementary Gymnasium Project. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
GTC will provide geotechnical engineering analysis and evaluation of the field and laboratory 
test data in order to provide earthwork and foundation recommendations for the Natural 
Bridges Elementary Gymnasium project.  For foundation design, a geotechnical engineering 
analysis and evaluation is required.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
The fee for the geotechnical investigation will is not to exceed $5,600, to be paid from the 
Measure B bond funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Facility Services Director 


231 of 332







  .  7770 Pardee Lane, Suite 101, Oakland, CA 94621  � Phone: 510-383-9950  � Fax: 510-383-9957 
 


1 of 4 


   


 
 
October 30, 2017 


 
 
Mr. Trevor Miller 
Director of Facility Services 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, California 95060 


 
 
Re:      Geotechnical Investigation 


Gymnasium Restoration at Natural Bridges Elementary School 
255 Swift Street 
Santa Cruz, California 95060 


 
 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 


 
 
As requested, GeoTrinity Consultants Inc. (GTC) is pleased to submit this proposal to perform 
the geotechnical investigation for the proposed gymnasium restoration at Natural Bridges 
Elementary School located at 255 Swift Street in Santa Cruz, California.  Our proposal is based 
on: 1) the project information provided by you and our site visit, 2) our previous work in the 
project vicinity, 3) and preliminary review of available published and unpublished soil and 
geologic data on the project vicinity. 


 


 
1.0       DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 


 
 
Based on the preliminary plans prepared by mADi Group, it is our understanding that the project 
will mainly consist of the gymnasium restoration.  Structural loads and final grading are to be 
determined; however, we assumed structural loads will be representative for this type of 
construction and only minor grading will be required to develop the project.    In addition, 
underground vessels, conduits, and pipelines will be installed as part of the development. 


 


 
2.0       SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
 
Based on our understanding of the proposed construction, we recommend the following scope of 
work for our geotechnical investigation: 


 


 
2.1 A subsurface exploration program under the direction of our geotechnical engineer who 


would supervise, log, and sample two borings at the site drilled to a maximum depth of 
50 feet, or 5 feet into the refusal, whichever encountered earlier.   All borings will be 


232 of 332







  � 7770 Pardee Lane, Suite 101, Oakland, CA 94621  � Phone: 510-383-9950  � Fax: 510-383-9957 
 


2 of 4 


   


 


located within the proposed building footprint.  The boreholes will be backfilled with 
cuttings and grouted with cement, if required. 


 


 
Standard penetration resistance would be determined at approximately 2.5-foot depth 
increments in the boring.  The standard penetration resistance has the dual advantage that 
the blow count obtained permits a rough correlation with the relative density of sand and 
the shear strength of clays. 


 


 
Relatively undisturbed samples will be recovered from various depths in the boring using 
the Modified California Sampler to help determine strength and compressibility 
characteristics of the subsurface materials 


 


 
2.2 Laboratory testing of selected samples recovered from the exploratory borings.   These 


tests would include: 
 


 
2.2.1 Classification   and   index   tests   such   as   sieve   analysis   and   Atterberg   Limits 


determinations. 
 


 
2.2.2 Moisture content and dry density determinations to aid in the qualitative evaluation of 


the soil types encountered and their strength characteristics. 
 


 
2.2.3 Strength tests to provide bearing capacities for the proposed residential structure and 


retaining wall. 
 


 
2.3 Geotechnical engineering analysis and evaluation of the field and laboratory test data in 


order to provide earthwork and foundation recommendations for the proposed 
development. 


 


 
2.4 Submittal of a geotechnical investigation report presenting, as applicable in addition to 


the results of water quality tests, but not necessarily limited to the following: 
 


 
2.4.1 Description of physical properties and characteristics of the subsurface soils including 


groundwater level and possible seasonal variations in the level. 
 


 
2.4.2 Recommendations  for  excavation  and  site  earthwork  including  procedures  for 


subgrade preparation, drainage requirements, and proper placement of fill and backfill. 
 


 
2.4.3 Foundation design recommendations for the proposed modular restroom and dock-height 


retaining walls, if required, including applicable bearing capacities, lateral loads, passive 
resistance of soil against the foundations and coefficient of friction between the soil and 


233 of 332







  � 7770 Pardee Lane, Suite 101, Oakland, CA 94621  � Phone: 510-383-9950  � Fax: 510-383-9957 
 


3 of 4 


   


 


foundations for seismic design. 
 
 


2.4.4 Seismic design parameters in accordance with the 2016 CBC and ASCE 7-10 Standards. 
 
 


2.4.5 Evaluation of induced settlements for the foundation, if any. 
 
 


2.4.6 Guide specifications for earthwork. 
 
 
Additionally, the presence, type, and extent of hazardous and corrosive materials and fault traces, 
if any, are beyond our scope of work.  We would be pleased to provide these services upon 
request. 


 


 
3.0       SCHEDULE 


 
 
We would begin our studies within two to three days after receiving your authorization to 
proceed, and would require about two weeks after the drilling to complete our studies and submit 
a final geotechnical investigation report.   Preliminary information would be available within 
three days after completion of our field portion of the studies.    In addition, we would perform 
our drilling during the weekends to avoid interrupting the school hours. 


 


 
4.0       FEES AND CONDITIONS 


 
 
The fee for our geotechnical investigation will be a lump sum of $5,600 (not to exceed).  If 
underground utility locations are not available and visible to us and we need to utilize the 
underground utility locating service, additional cost will be based on the invoice with 5% of 
markup.   If you approve of the scope, cost, and attached General Conditions and Schedule of 
Charges, please sign one copy of this proposal, and return it to our office at your convenience. 


 


 
Additional consultation services which are beyond the scope of this proposal will be provided on 
a "time and materials" basis in accordance with the Schedule of Charges attached to this proposal. 


 


 
5.0       CLOSING AND AUTHORIZATION 


 
 
We thank you for consideration of our firm and look forward to being of service to you on this 
project. To authorize the scope of services, general conditions, and cost, please sign one copy of 
this proposal, and return it to our office at your earliest convenience. 


 
Should you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to call 
our project manager, Mr. Jerry R. Yang, at (925) 699-2550. 


234 of 332







  � 7770 Pardee Lane, Suite 101, Oakland, CA 94621  � Phone: 510-383-9950  � Fax: 510-383-9957 
 


4 of 4 


   


 
 


Sincerely, 
 
 


GeoTrinity Consultants, Inc. 
 
 


 
 
 


Jerry R. Yang 
Project Manager 


 
 
 


JJY:mac 
Copies:  Addressee (1) 


Mr. Mark Neil Bayog - mADi Group (1) 
 
 
 


Authorization for Geotechnical Investigation: 
 


 
If you approve of the aforementioned scope of work and cost estimate for the geotechnical investigation 
of the proposed gymnasium restoration at Natural Bridges Elementary School, please sign and return one 
copy to GeoTrinity at your earliest convenience. 


 
 
 


Accepted By:  Date:   


 
Printed Name: 


 
Patrick K. Gaffney 


 
Title: 


  
Asst. Supt., Business Services 


 


235 of 332







      AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.13 
C:\USERS\BSSEC\DESKTOP\BOARDPAD 110817\SURPLUS COVER.DOC 


 
 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017  
 
FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in 
accordance with Board Policy 3270 and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545(a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, or if 
it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not suitable for 
school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal property 
authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of the district 
or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may delegate to the 
district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to transfer the personal 
property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the auction and after payment has 
been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two thousand 
five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by any employee 
of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of property having 
previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no qualified bid was 
received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of those 
members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of arranging a 
sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate by the board, 
or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the district 
empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Ed Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical means, 
provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the governing board 
has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 


236 of 332







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF NOVEMBER 8, 2017 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE: Westlake Elementary 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Estimated Value 


 
1. Epson Power Lite 84 LCD 


Projector 
15864  8-10 yrs Non-operable, parts 


unavailable 
$0 


2. Dell Monitor None  8 years Non-operable $0 
3. Dell Monitor None  12 years Non-operable $0 
4. Film Strip Projector 25904  unknown Obsolete $0 
       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       


237 of 332







SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF NOVEMBER 8, 2017 
 


SURPLUS PROPERTY LIST 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:______________________________________________  


                 
SITE: BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS 


        
 Property Description Asset #  Year/Age Condition Estimated Value 


 
1. iPad 12430  8 years Non-operable $0 
       
     Total $0 


  
It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 
Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 
and Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
       


238 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


 
AGENDA ITEM   LCAP Update: School Community Coordinators 
 


MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017 
 


FROM:    Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In April, 2017, SCCS developed a three year plan for English Learner achievement. The English 
Learner Roadmap identified four priorities for the next three years, with each priority having 
unique goals. Priority #2 is to meet the needs of the whole child.  
 


This vast majority of our English Learners come from Spanish-speaking homes. Many English 
Language Learners (ELLs) and their families face marginalization due to socioeconomic status, 
linguistic barriers and unfamiliarity with a culturally distinct educational system. Our ELLs are 
diverse, including students with strong educational backgrounds in their first language, 
refugees fleeing violence in their homelands, and unaccompanied minors with interrupted 
formal schooling.  Additionally, many of our families live in fear of sudden deportation and 
separation as recent immigration raids have affected our entire school community.  
 


Santa Cruz City Schools is committed to fully supporting our English Language Learners and 
their families. We recognize that family and community supports are inherently connected with 
each student’s achievement as well as their physical, mental, social and emotional well-being. 
Therefore, we will work to activate resources and engage families to address the unmet, non-
academic needs that hinder ELLs’ ability to thrive in school.  
 


SCCS seeks to ensure school is a safe, welcoming, and inclusive environment, and to engage 
students, families, and the community to become authentic partners through the following 
goals and strategies:  
 


1. School is an inclusive and welcoming place for ELLs of all backgrounds.  
● Implement policies, guidelines, and training to staff in support of Board Resolution 14-


16-17 in support of all students and Board Policy 5111.3(a) for protection of 
undocumented students. 


● Adjust the FTE of school community coordinators, social workers, and counselors to 
meet the demographic demand at each site in order to serve the whole child. 


● Collaborate with Student Services to continue to integrate social and emotional learning 
approaches that address the Social Emotional Learning (SEL) standards and to ensure 
these meet the needs of all ELL students.  


● Leverage Tier I evidence based practices and strategies, e.g. Positive Behavior 
Interventions and Supports (PBIS), Trauma Informed Practices, and Restorative Justice 
(RJ), to build safe and inclusive learning environments for ELLs. 


● Ensure ELLs have access to expanded learning and enrichment programs that accelerate 
language and academic outcomes and work to develop the health and well-being of 
each child.  


239 of 332







  


 
2.  Families increase their capacity to support their students and make informed decisions 


about their children’s education 
● Create and offer resources and trainings that treat parents as equal partners in the 


education of their child and increase the capacity of parents to improve student 
outcomes. 


● Empower families to take part in family representative groups or meetings to influence 
policy, practice and program decisions that affect students and families.  


● Listen to parents and students to inform the district about how to create a system that 
serves our ELLs.  


● Collaborate with Student Services to document and ensure equitable access to full-
service community school resources. 


● Regularly communicate with parents their child’s progress towards reclassification, 
graduation, and A-G requirements.  


● Prioritize and provide translation and interpretations services to promote and enhance 
family engagement and ensure equitable access to information and resources and 
celebrations. 


 
Our supplemental LCAP funds support School Community Coordinators at the following sites: 
Bay View, DeLaveaga, and Gault (.75 FTE); Monarch (.4625 FTE); Mission Hill (.5 FTE) and 
Branciforte MS (.5 FTE); Costanoa (1.0 FTE) and Harbor High (1.0 FTE). 
 
School Community Coordinators are critical liaisons between our schools and our families to 
enable us to reach our goals outlined above. All our school community coordinators are 
bicultural and bilingual. From translating to advocacy, our school community coordinators are 
an essential bridge between our parent community and our schools.  In monthly ELAC and 
DELAC meetings, our community coordinators support parents in learning about important 
school topics such as English Language Development, reclassification, navigating Illuminate and 
other parent portals, A-G requirements, Seal of Biliteracy, and graduation. Since November, 
2016, they have played an important role in supporting immigrant parents in this time of 
uncertainty. They continue to translate for school staff including classroom teachers, school 
nursing staff and health clerks, site administrators and administrative assistants. Finally, they all 
play an important role in community events, fundraising, and celebrations. 
 
School community coordinators also support other students in our system by linking families in 
transition to community resources such as health care and other vital services.  
 
Our school community coordinators have the following collective vision: 
• The school is an inclusive, welcoming, vibrant, integrated, culturally competent community 
• The school is a place of learning and academic excellence for all 
•  Students feel safe and supported in school  
•  Families trust the school, feel welcome, and are a valued part of the school community with 


a strong voice that is heard 
•  Families feel empowered, are able to navigate the educational system, and effect change in 


the school 
•  Families are supportive of the school, active in the school, and collaborate with the school 
•  Families are advocates for their children and guide their learning 


240 of 332







  


•  Families and students know that any success is possible 
•  Students are confident and successful 
•  Students attend school regularly and on time 
•  Students love learning, feel inspired, and achieve their educational goals in school 
 


In Santa Cruz City Schools, we are fortunate to have dedicated School Community Coordinators 
to serve as the vital link to our families. They are dedicated employees who have collectively 
many years in service to families in Santa Cruz.   


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
School Community Coordinators (Central LCAP):  5.2125  FTE  $372,999  
School Community Coordinators (Site Discretionary) 1.0 FTE    $59,779 
Total:           $432,777 
        
  
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community.  


241 of 332







242 of 332







243 of 332







244 of 332







245 of 332







246 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.2 
workforce housing feasibility study cover 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Workforce Housing Feasibility Study  


Approval of Consulting Services Agreement with Dutra Cerro Graden Inc. 
 
MEETING DATE: November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:   Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Consulting Services Agreement for Phase 1 – Preliminary Workforce Housing Study by 
Dutra Cerro Graden, Inc. (DCG). 
 
BACKGROUND:  
Housing in Santa Cruz has become cost-prohibitive for most teachers and staff, as evidenced by 
the results of a 2/15/17 District employee housing survey.  It showed that 65.9% of 
respondents spend over 31% of their total income on housing and that 24% spend over 50% of 
their income on housing.  Based on the demonstrated need from the employee survey, the 
District has requested that DCG analyze the feasibility of developing workforce housing at a 
central, west-side or east-side location. 
 
DCG is a real estate firm led by Dominic Dutra, Alan Cerro and Landis Graden, who focus on 
providing sustainable real estate management strategies to organizations that support local 
communities.  Their company profile is attached. 
 
DCG will present their process for conducting the feasibility study.  The Board is requested to 
approve the attached Consulting Services Agreement for Phase 1 – Preliminary Workforce 
Housing Study. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
For the Phase 1: Preliminary Workforce Housing Study - $22,500, to be paid by revenues from 
facilities use (FACU) funds. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


247 of 332







 


 
 
 


CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
 


THIS CONSULTING AND BROKERAGE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of 
November 8, 2017 (the “Effective Date” ),  by and between Santa Cruz City Schools (“Owner”), 
and DUTRA, CERRO, GRADEN, INC., a California corporation dba DCG Commercial 
(“Consultant”). 


 
1. BASIC AGREEMENTS 


 
1.1 Basic Services. In compliance with all of the terms and conditions of this 


Agreement, the Consultant shall provide those services specified in the “Scope of Services” 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, which services are referred to herein as the “Basic Services”. 


 
1.2 Additional Services. Owner shall have the right at any time during the 


performance of the services, without invalidating this Agreement, to order extra work beyond 
that specified in the Scope of Services or make changes by altering, adding to or deducting from 
said work (“Additional Services”), by written request to Consultant, subject to the written 
acceptance of Consultant.  The written request and acceptance of Additional Work shall be 
written amendments to the Scope of Services. No Additional Services may be undertaken 
unless authorized by Owner in advance and in writing, including email. Additional Services shall 
be paid for by Owner as provided in Section 2.2. All services performed in connection with this 
Agreement may be referred to herein as the “Services.”  All terms and conditions under this 
Agreement applicable to Basic Services shall be applicable to all Services except as otherwise 
agreed to in writing by Owner and Consultant. 


 
1.3 Standard of Performance. As a material inducement to Owner to enter into this 


Agreement, Consultant hereby represents that Consultant has all applicable licenses to perform 
the Basic Services and is experienced in performing work or services similar to the Basic 
Services and, in light of such experience, Consultant hereby covenants that it shall follow 
applicable industry standards in performing all services required hereunder and using only 
qualified personnel.  Owner and Consultant agree that Consultant shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations and orders in performing the 
services hereunder. 


 
2. COMPENSATION. The Owner shall compensate the Consultant for the services to be 
performed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement as follows: 


 
2.1 Basic Services. For the Basic Services, as described in the Scope of Services, 


Consultant shall be paid in accordance with the “Schedule of Compensation” attached hereto as 
Exhibit “B” (the “Basic Services Fee”). Said compensation shall be inclusive of all benefits, 
compensation costs and expenses unless specifically set forth to the contrary in this Section 2 


 


 
 


-1- 


248 of 332







2  


or in Exhibit “B”.  Consultant shall pay its own income taxes, federal, state or city, and self- 
employment taxes. 


 
2.2 Additional Services. For Additional Services, as described in Section 1.2 hereof, 


compensation shall be paid as set forth in the Schedule of Compensation attached hereto as 
Exhibit “B” or pursuant to a separate written agreement between Owner and Consultant 
specifying the Additional Services to be performed (the “Additional Services Fee” and, together 
with the Basic Services Fee and any other amounts owed by Owner pursuant to this Agreement, 
the “Fees”). 


 
2.3 Payment. Payment of the compensation set forth herein shall be made as set 


forth in Exhibit B. In addition, Consultant shall be entitled to receive reimbursement for 
expenses approved in writing in advance by Owner. Consultant shall render an invoice 
(together with all applicable lien releases and other supporting documentation reasonably 
requested by Owner) to Owner for all Services and approved reimbursable expenses for which 
Consultant seeks payment. Upon timely submission by Consultant, Owner shall pay Consultant 
for all payments due and payable within thirty (30) days thereafter. All past due and unpaid 
amounts shall bear interest of 0.8% per month assessed from the due date until payment is 
received. Consultant will continue to perform its obligations hereunder and pursue prosecution 
of the Services during any claim, dispute, or proceeding between the parties hereto as if such 
claim, dispute, or proceeding had not been instituted, provided that Owner continues to make 
payments to Consultant as required under this Agreement for Services that are not the subject 
of any dispute. 


 
2.4 Term. This Agreement shall begin on November 8, 2017 and shall terminate 


upon completion of Services, but no later than June 30, 2018. There will be no extension of the 
term of this Agreement without express written agreement by both parties. 


 
3. INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 


 
3.1 Insurance. Consultant shall provide Owner with certification of insurance 


evidencing Consultant’s current policies of Workers’ Compensation Insurance, Employer’s 
Liability Insurance, Commercial General Liability Insurance, Comprehensive Automobile Liability 
Insurance and Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance, and any deductibles or self-insured 
retention applicable to such policies. 


 
3.2 Indemnification. 


 
(a) Consultant Indemnity. Consultant, on behalf of itself and its 


officers, employees, invitees, licensees, independent contractors and agents (all of said parties 
are herein collectively referred to as the “Consultant Indemnitor”), shall indemnify, protect, 
defend (with counsel reasonably acceptable to Owner and to Consultant Indemnitor’s 
insurance company), save and hold Owner and its parent, affiliated and subsidiary entities and 
their respective principals, agents, employees, partners, directors, officers (all of said parties 


249 of 332







3  


are herein collectively referred to as the “Owner Indemnitee”) harmless from and against all 
liability, damage, loss, claims, demands, actions and expenses of any nature whatsoever, 
including, but not limited to, attorneys’ fees (collectively, “Claims”), to the extent such Claims 
arise out of or are connected with, or are claimed to arise out of or be connected with: (i) the 
negligent act, error or omission of a Consultant Indemnitor; or (ii) the willful misconduct of a 
Consultant Indemnitor; and excluding any such claim or liability to the extent arising from the 
negligence or willful misconduct of an Indemnitee. 


 
(b) Owner Release. Owner hereby acknowledges and agrees that it 


shall not hold Consultant liable or responsible for any inaccuracies or incomplete information 
contained in any site plans, maps, drawings, materials, reports, studies, investigations, or 
documents provided by Owner or to Owner by any appraisers, lenders, investors, architects, 
engineers, brokers or real estate salespersons and/or any other consultants (collectively, “Third 
Parties”). In addition, Consultant shall have no liability to Owner for its recommendations of 
any Third Parties. In connection with the foregoing, Owner hereby releases and agrees to hold 
Consultant harmless from any liability, expense, fee or damage arising from: (a) the negligence 
or willful misconduct of Owner or any Third Parties; and (b) any inaccuracies or incomplete 
information contained in any site plans, maps, drawings, materials, reports, studies, 
investigations, or documents provided by any Third Party. Nothing in this Section shall release 
Consultant from fraud, gross negligence, willful misconduct, any indemnity obligation set forth 
in this Agreement and/or any breach of this Agreement by Consultant. 


 
4. TERMINATION. Owner shall have the right to cancel and terminate this Agreement at 
any time whether or not a default exists hereunder, and Owner shall incur no penalty or liability 
to Consultant or any other person by reason of such cancellation. Consultant may terminate 
this Agreement for any or no reason following sixty (60) days prior written notice of termination 
to Owner, and Consultant shall incur no penalty or liability to Owner or any other person by 
reason of such cancellation other than the compensation to be paid for this sixty (60) day 
period. If the cancellation is for no fault of Consultant hereunder, Consultant shall be entitled 
to a prorated share of the Basic Services Fee for the month in which the Agreement is 
terminated and any bonus payment then due and payable. Upon receipt or delivery of notice 
of termination of the Agreement, Consultant shall promptly take whatever reasonable steps are 
required to economically and efficiently transition any services remaining under the Agreement 
to Owner, as of such termination date, including but not limited to, delivery of all Work Product 
(as hereinafter defined) to Owner. 


 
5. WORK PRODUCT. All data, survey results, models, reports, plans and specifications 
obtained or prepared by the Consultant in connection with the performance of services under 
this Agreement (collectively, “Work Product”) shall be the property of Owner, including all 
copyrights, rights of reproduction and other interests relating thereto, except as provided 
herein. Consultant may retain a copy of project Work Product for its records. 


250 of 332







4  


6. MISCELLANEOUS. 
 


6.1 [Intentionally omitted.] 
 


6.2 Party Representatives. Owner’s designated representative is Superintendent 
Patrick Gaffney. Consultant’s designated representative and project principal is Dominic Dutra. 
The parties each specifically acknowledge that no other officer, employee or agent except the 
designated representatives shall have authority to modify this Agreement, give any consent or 
approval on behalf of their represented party, order or approve Additional Services, or waive 
any rights hereunder this Agreement. As the Consultant’s designated representative and 
project principal, Dominic Dutra shall have primary authority and oversight of the performance 
of all Consultant services under this Agreement. Consultant shall not replace Dominic Dutra as 
the Consultant’s designated representative and project principal without the prior written 
consent of Owner. 


 
6.3 Limitation of Liability. No direct or indirect constituent partner or member of 


Consultant or Owner, or any affiliate, nor any trustee, beneficiary, shareholder, partner, 
member, manager, officer, director, employee or other agent of any of the foregoing, shall have 
any personal liability in connection with this Agreement. IN NO EVENT SHALL A PARTY BE 
LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR LOST PROFITS, OR FOR EXEMPLARY, PUNITIVE, SPECIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES FOR ANY CAUSE OF ACTION, WHETHER 
IN CONTRACT OR TORT, IN CONNECTION WITH OR ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT. 


 
6.4 Disclaimer and Release. Owner represents and warrants that Consultant has 


made no promise, guarantee, or assurance of any particular outcome, approval, or success of 
the Project, and Consultant disclaims any representations or statements made by any of its 
employees, agents, contractors, members, managers, officers, or directors, or any other agent 
of any of the foregoing promising, guaranteeing, or assuring any particular outcome, Approval, 
or success of the Project. Owner is not relying on any prior representations or statements 
regarding the Approval or success of the Project by Consultant, and acknowledges that the 
nature of the Project renders the outcome uncertain at the outset. Owner releases Consultant 
from any and all liability for the final Project outcome and any failure to achieve Approval of the 
Project on terms satisfactory to Owner. 


 
6.5 General. 


 
(a) Consultant shall perform all services required herein as an 


independent contractor of Owner and shall remain at all times as to Owner a wholly 
independent contractor with only such obligations as are consistent with that role. Consultant 
shall not at any time or in any manner represent that it or any of its agents or employees are 
employees of Owner. 


 
(b) Consultant may not assign this Agreement without the prior 


written approval of Owner. Owner, in its sole and absolute discretion, may assign this 


251 of 332







5  


Agreement at any time provided that Owner’s assignee executes an undertaking to Consultant 
to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. Upon any such assignment by 
Owner, and upon the written assumption of liability and execution of a written undertaking of 
this Agreement by an assignee subject to Consultant’s written acceptance, Owner shall be 
released from all obligations and liability under this Agreement that accrue after the effective 
date of such assignment. 


 
(c) Any notice which either party may desire to give to the other 


party must be in writing and shall be effective upon confirmed receipt or refusal thereof, 
addressed to the respective parties at the addresses designated by such parties. 


 
(d) Consultant, for itself and its employees and personnel, 


acknowledges, confirms and agrees that all information learned in the course of their 
employment and all data furnished by Owner, all plans, drawings, computer programs, 
specifications, and other documents relating to the Project, Owner’s business and the terms of 
this Agreement are and shall remain of a confidential nature, unless and until such matter is 
publicly known, or becomes publicly known, without fault of Consultant. 


 
(e) No waiver of any default hereunder shall be construed as a waiver 


of any subsequent breach. 
 


(f) This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the laws of 
the state in which the Project is located. This Agreement is made and shall be performed in 
Santa Cruz, California, and any dispute arising from or in connection with this Agreement shall 
be adjudicated in the state or federal courts having jurisdiction of such subject matter situated 
in Santa Cruz County, California. The parties accordingly submit to the personal jurisdiction of 
such courts and waive any objection to said venue. 


 
(g) All previous negotiations and agreements between the parties 


hereto, with respect to the transaction set forth herein, are merged in this instrument, which 
fully and completely express the parties’ rights and obligations. 


 
(h) The terms, provisions, representations and certification contained 


in this Agreement, or inferable therefrom, shall survive the termination of this Agreement and 
the payment of the remuneration hereinabove provided. 


 
(i) The prevailing party in any action against the other related to this 


Agreement shall be entitled to have and to recover from the other party its actual attorneys’ 
fees and other expenses in connection with such action. 


 
(j) If any term or provision of this Agreement shall be found to be 


unenforceable, then, notwithstanding such term or provision, this Agreement shall be and 
remain in full force and effect and such term shall be deemed stricken to the least extent 
necessary to avoid such unenforceability, and the Agreement shall be construed to give fullest 
effect possible to the original intent of the parties. 


252 of 332







6  


(k) All exhibits attached hereto are incorporated herein by this 
reference for the sole purposes of setting forth the scope of the Basic Services, the terms of 
payment, and any schedule of performance. 


 
(l) Each individual executing this Agreement represents and warrants 


that he or she is duly authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the party 
to this Agreement. 


 
(m) This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, 


each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which when taken together shall be 
deemed an original and shall constitute one and the same instrument. In order to facilitate the 
transaction contemplated herein, electronically mailed or facsimile signatures may be used in 
place of original signatures on this Agreement. Each party intends to be bound by the 
signatures on the electronically mailed or facsimiled document, is aware that the other party 
will rely on such signatures, and hereby waive any defenses to the enforcement of the terms of 
this Agreement based on the form of signature. 


 
[Signatures on following page] 


253 of 332







7  


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 
and year first above written. 


 
 
 
 


OWNER 
 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
 


Signature:   
 


By (Name):  , 
its Designated Representative 


 
Title:   


 
Date:   


 
CONSULTANT 


 
DUTRA CERRO GRADEN, INC., a California corporation 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Signature:   
 


By: Dominic Dutra, its Designated Representative      
Title:    Co-Founder and Chief Strategy Officer            
Date:    November 2, 2017                                               


254 of 332







8  


EXHIBIT “A” 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 


 
Phase I: Preliminary Workforce Housing Study 


 
The District has requested workforce feasibility studies be completed on three properties owned by the 
District located in the eastern, central and western region of the County as prospective workforce housing 
sites. The exact site locations will be subject to District staff input based on location, use and current and 
future needs. 
DCG begins the process by looking at a property, identifying its current use, determining how the site can 
be utilized, and then developing strategic and sustainable long-term plans incorporating that 
underutilized or unused real estate asset as a benefit to the overall mission of an organization. This 
process is defined as Land Use Analysis. 


 
DCG will complete a Land Use Analysis on each of the three sites to determine which site presents itself 
as the optimal property for Workforce Housing. 


 
LAND USE ANALYSIS SCOPE OF WORK 
PROJECT SCOPING SESSION WITH DISTRICT 


 Meet with the District to confirm our understanding of project goals, review the project 
schedule, discuss expectations of the planning process and work products 
 Meet with staff selected by the District to gain background on community relations, 
relationships and policy guidance for the District’s properties to be analyzed 


 
 


DATA COLLECTION 
 


Our team will undertake a data gathering effort to collect pertinent information related to the properties 
to include, but not necessarily be limited to: 


 General Plans and zoning ordinances 
 Specific and/or concept plans 
 Development standards 
 Design guidelines 
 Outside previous legal analysis and consultant reports 


 
 


SITE ASSESSMENTS 
 


 Visit and photograph the properties to be studied, including the surrounding areas and 
neighborhoods to identify existing conditions relevant to the project and to gain a thorough 
knowledge of the area. 


 Synthesize all contextual influences and present opportunities and constraints associated with 
each of the sites 


 
 


YIELD STUDY 


255 of 332







9  


A yield study assesses the site constraints and development requirements to arrive at a realistic number 
of units on a particular site. The main items we will consider are: 


 
 Site orientation 
 Setbacks 
 Nominal street sizes 
 Variable unit sizes 
 House sizes 
 Slopes, if any 
 Parking requirement 


 
PRELIMINARY FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
We will review with staff our preliminary findings and recommendations on the three sites and rank 
them in order of feasibility. Upon completion of our Phase I Analysis and determination by the District, 
our team will move forward with a full feasibility analysis on the optimal site for Workforce Housing. 


 
 
 
Phase II: Due Diligence Workforce Housing Analysis 


 
Based on the results of our Phase I studies, the direction of District staff and feedback from key 
stakeholders, should the District choose to move forward with an in-depth feasibility study, our team will 
analyze the most optimal site for Workforce Housing. 
DCG has assembled a team of experienced and qualified consultants to analyze the property selected and 
can provide their services as needed. The final services and project budget will be dependent on the 
characteristics of the selected site: 


                      A Phase I Environmental Assessment to evaluate environmental issues which may affect future 
development of the property. This assessment will review potential development concerns in the event 
there is a high degree of risk and liability of soil contamination from prior toxic chemical use or disposal. 
 A Geotechnical Report to review, test and study geotechnical conditions of the site to 
determine if the soil is suitable to build on. 
                      A boundary survey is required where a selected site is not already an identifiable legal parcel to 
order to establish the boundaries of the land to be used for housing. 
 A topographic survey is required when a specific site has demonstrable changes in topography 
that will require significant grading to prepare for housing development. 
                      Site planning by a licensed architect to determine the number, size and type of units that can be 
constructed on the site, while also producing conceptual elevations to communicate the “look and feel” 
of the housing and conceptual imagery to establish the scale, mass and character of the potential units. 
 A financial analysis will determine preliminary development costs and financing gaps. A 
financial analyst will determine project feasibility including construction costs, potential rent rates and 
gap funding requirements. 


 
 


DEVELOPMENT OPTIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 


256 of 332







10  


Based on the aforementioned financial analysis and modeling, DCG will determine the realistic 
development opportunities available to the District and the ways to best address the likely funding gap 
between costs of development and typical available funding sources for workforce housing projects. As 
the “funding gap,” is typically a significant cost, the financial analyst will partner with DCG to offer options 
and recommendations based on the District’s needs, financial status and timeline. The revenue and 
timeline for receipt of funds are key considerations for the realization of a workforce housing 
development. A review of options for development funding will include, but not necessarily be limited to: 


o General obligation bond 
o Pay as you go (conventional bank loan) 
o Lease-leaseback 


o Public grants 
o Certificates of participation 
o Partnership with for-profit builder (joint use/joint occupancy) 


 
 


DCG shall present the findings of the Due Diligence Workforce Housing Analysis to District staff and the 
Board of Education. The Board shall then make a determination to either proceed with the development 
of Workforce Housing (future phases and outline for next steps are included on the following pages) or 
to terminate the effort altogether. 


 
 
 
 


COMMUNITY OUTREACH AND PARTNERSHIP EXPLORATIONS 
 


At the District’s sole discretion, DCG’s scope involving community outreach and ancillary efforts may 
include: 


 Outreach to the city, county and others should be made to provide the Board with a sense of 
the support from other key stakeholders 
 Community meeting(s) should be conducted so the Board understands the level of community 
and neighborhood support for each site 


257 of 332







-11-  


EXHIBIT “B” 
 


SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION 
 


1. Basic Services Fee. Compensation for the Basic Services shall be made in accordance 
with the following: 


 
Phase I: Preliminary Workforce Housing Study 


 
The above noted Scope of Service for Phase I is anticipated to be completed within 7 weeks. DCG 
proposes a flat fee of Seven Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($7,500) per site to offer these services to 
the District. 50% of this fee will be due upon project (phase I) initiation with the remaining 50% due 
upon project (phase I) completion. The District will be responsible for the cost of any additional third- 
party expenses, subject to prior District authorization. The District will be responsible for all consultant 
expenses including printing of materials and meeting supplies (excluding travel expenses). Consultant 
reimbursable expenses will be capped at a not to exceed amount of $1,000, unless pre-approved by 
Client to exceed this amount. Expense reimbursements will be invoiced to Client upon project (phase I) 
completion. 


 


 
 


Eastern site : $7,500 
 


Central site: $7,500 
 


Western site: $7,500 
 


Phase I Total: 
 


$22,500 
 
 
 


Phase II: Due Diligence Workforce Housing Analysis 
 


The above noted Scope of Service for Phase II is anticipated to be completed within 8-12 weeks. The 
final budget for this phase will be determined based upon the characteristics of the final site. The 
estimated project budget will be $65,000 - $85,000 (inclusive of the above noted studies and analyses). 
50% of this fee will be due upon project (phase II) initiation with the remaining 50% due upon project 
(phase II) completion. The District will be responsible for the cost of any additional third-party expenses. 
DCG will present the District with a project budget, subject to prior District authorization. The District 
will be responsible for all consultant expenses including printing of materials and meeting supplies 
(excluding travel expenses). Consultant reimbursable expenses will be capped at a not to exceed 
amount of $1,000, unless pre-approved by Client to exceed this amount. Expense reimbursements will 
be invoiced to Client upon project (phase II) completion. 


258 of 332







12  


 
 


Community Outreach and Partnership Explorations 
 


Community Outreach and Partnership Explorations shall be billed monthly on a time and materials basis 
in accordance with the hourly rates below: 


 


TEAM MEMBER RATE PER HOUR 


Dominic Dutra 
Co-Founder, Chief Strategy Officer 


$325 


Landis Graden 
Co-Founder, CEO 


$325 


Jeffrey Slavin 
Vice President, Real Estate Development 


Services 


$275 


Angelic Williams 
Senior Project Manager, Real Estate 


Development Services 


$200 


Leah Denman 
Senior Project Manager, K-12 Advisory Services 


$200 


 
 


Client will be responsible for all consultant expenses including printing of materials and meeting supplies 
(excluding travel expenses). Consultant reimbursable expenses will be capped at a not-to-exceed 
amount of $2,000, unless pre-approved by Client to exceed this amount. Expense reimbursements will 
be invoiced to Client monthly. 


259 of 332







26
0 


of
 3


32







26
1 


of
 3


32







26
2 


of
 3


32







26
3 


of
 3


32







26
4 


of
 3


32







26
5 


of
 3


32







26
6 


of
 3


32







267 of 332







268 of 332







269 of 332







270 of 332







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:   Single Plans for Student Achievement (SPSA): Elementary, Middle, Alternative, and High 


Schools 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017  
 
FROM:  Frank Wells, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent  
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve the Single Plans for Student Achievement for elementary, middle, alternative, and high schools. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
Pursuant to California Education Code (EC) Section 64001 and the federal Elementary and Secondary 
Education Act (ESEA) schools that receive state and federal funds will consolidate all school plans into the 
Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA).  
 
School Site Councils (SCC) are required to develop the SPSA. The SSCs’ responsibilities include approving the 
plan, recommending it to the local governing board for approval, monitoring its implementation, and 
evaluating the effectiveness of the planned activities at least annually. However, today’s presentations are 
informational.  
 
The SPSA is a blueprint to improve the academic performance of all students. The purpose of the SPSA is to 
coordinate all educational services at the school. The SPSA addresses how funds provided to the school will be 
used to improve the academic performance of all pupils. The SPSA must integrate the purposes and 
requirements of all state and federal categorical programs in which the school participates.  
 
The SPSA serves as the organizer for an individual school’s improvement process. The SPSA ensures that 
students are better equipped to meet the Common Core State Standards in English and math. The reports 
presented to the board are intended to show the progress they have made toward meeting those goals.  
 
This work is in support of the following District Goals and their corresponding Metrics:  
  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 


opportunities.  
  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students.  
  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups within 


the SCCS student community.  
 
Fiscal Impact:  Fiscal Impact is addressed in each site plan. 
 
Access to Santa Cruz City Schools Single Plans for Student Achievement by Site:  
http://sccs.net/departments/educational_services/curriculum/single_plans_for_student_achievement 


271 of 332



http://sccs.net/departments/educational_services/curriculum/single_plans_for_student_achievement





27
2 


of
 3


32







27
3 


of
 3


32







27
4 


of
 3


32







27
5 


of
 3


32







27
6 


of
 3


32







27
7 


of
 3


32







27
8 


of
 3


32







27
9 


of
 3


32







 
   
 AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Reject Bid for Mission Hill Middle School Front Access Landscape 
and Drop-Off/Pick-Up Area Project 


 
MEETING DATE: October 18, 2017 
 
FROM: Patrick K. Gaffney, Asst. Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Reject bid received for Mission Hill Middle School Front Access Landscape and Drop 
Off/Pick-Up Area Project, Bid # 2017-16. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Mission Hill Middle School front landscape project will increase the safety and 
access into the front entry of the main building as well as beautify the front of Mission 
Hill Middle School Campus and improve waiting areas. 
 
The District sent a request for bids to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost 
Accounting Construction Application list.  Only one bid was received, from CRW 
Industries, Inc. in the amount of $457,556.00.  
       
Staff recommends that the Board reject the bid and that the District rebid the 
Project.  This recommendation is based on the facts that there was only one 
bidder, and the bid submitted significantly exceeds the District’s budget for 
the Project.  Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111(a), the Board 
must either award to the lowest responsible bidder, or must reject all bids.  
Section 20111(a) enables the Board to reject all bids for any reason.     
 
 FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding 
metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


280 of 332







BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 


MEETING OF NOVEMBER 8, 2017  
 


REJECTION OF ALL BIDS 
 


Approval Date: _________________  Approved By:____________________________________  


 FRONT ACCESS LANDSCAPE  
AND DROP OFF/PICKUP AREA PROJECT  


MISSION HILL MIDDLE SCHOOL  
 


BID NUMBER 2017-16, OPENED OCTOBER 24, 2017, 10:00 AM 
 


 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Mission Hill Front Landscape and access Project to increase the safety and access into the 
front entry of the main building as well as beautify the front of Mission Hill Middle School 
Campus and improve waiting areas. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
A request for bids was sent out to all contractors on our Uniform Construction Cost 
Accounting Construction Application list.  Only one bid was received, from CRW Industries, 
Inc. in the amount of $457,556.00.  


       
Staff recommends that the Board reject the bid and that the District rebid the 
Project.  This recommendation is based on the facts that there was only one 
bidder, and the bid submitted significantly exceeds the District’s budget for the 
Project.  Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 20111(a), the Board must either 
award to the lowest responsible bidder, or must reject all bids.  Section 20111(a) 
enables the Board to reject all bids for any reason.     


 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
None. 
 
 


 


281 of 332







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Board Policy Updates 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 8, 2017 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the revised/new policies as submitted for final reading/adoption.   


 
BACKGROUND: 
These policies were approved for first reading on October 18 and are now submitted for final 
reading/adoption.  New and revised policies are submitted through the GAMUT online board 
policy book updating process, which sends policies for review to participating districts 
approximately six times per year.  These recommendations reflect recent changes in education 
code and/or case law.  The policies have been reviewed by staff to ensure that any required 
customization for Santa Cruz City Schools has been included.   
 
The Policy Guidesheet provides a basic overview of the policy changes.  Proposed revised 
policies and bylaws precede current documents for your review.  If the policy is new to our 
district, there is no current policy for review. 
 
Note: Board Policy 4112.61 Employment References is submitted for deletion – there is no new 
policy – only the current policy for review.  The requirements from this current policy have 
been moved into the Administrative Regulation – so the board policy is no longer required. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and its corresponding metrics: 
Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 
career opportunities. 
Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gap the currently exists between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 


282 of 332







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


Page 1 of 2 
 


 


Note: Descriptions below identify revisions made to CSBA's sample board policies and board bylaws.  Editorial 


changes have also been made. Districts should review the sample materials and modify their own policies 


accordingly. 


 
BP 0000 - Vision 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to address data sources for vision setting, set expectations that the district's vision will drive 


all board decisions and district operations, and align the process of reviewing the district's vision with the 


process for reviewing and updating the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). Regulation deleted and 


key concepts incorporated into the BP. 


 


BP 0100 - Philosophy 


(BP new to SCCS) 


Policy updated to strongly encourage boards to engage in thoughtful discussions and develop their own 


statements of district philosophy. Sample statements expanded to add items related to nondiscrimination, the 


influence of teachers and educational support staff on student achievement, the importance of professional 


development for staff and the board, the board's responsibility to engage in advocacy, and the link between 


financial stability and attainment of district goals.  


 


BP 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to provide that the responsibility for determining the criteria, schedule, method(s), and 


instrument(s) for superintendent evaluation rests with the board, although input may be sought from the 


superintendent. Updated policy clarifies that, although the evaluation may be discussed in closed session, the 


law does not permit discussion or action on any proposed change in compensation during closed session, 


with limited exceptions. Policy also reflects court decision holding that personal performance goals are not 


subject to disclosure to the public unless they are specifically stated in the employment contract. 


 


BP 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61 - Employment References 


(BP deleted) 


Policy deleted and key concepts incorporated into regulation. Regulation also updated to more directly reflect 


state law regarding the authority of employers to communicate certain information about current or former 


employees to prospective employers. 


 


BP 6161.1 - Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 


(BP revised) 


Policy updated to delete material defining the "sufficiency" of instructional materials as meaning that students 


enrolled in the same course have identical materials from the same adoption cycle, and to delete optional 


material reflecting the authorization to purchase the newest adopted materials for schools in deciles 1-3 of 


the Academic Performance Index, as those laws have repealed on their own terms.  Updated policy also 


reflects the requirement to address the sufficiency of instructional materials in the district's LCAP and reflects 


NEW LAW (AB 575, 2016) which provides that the State Board of Education may adopt instructional 


materials for grades K-8 at least once, but not more than twice, every eight years. 


 


BB 9121 - President 


(BB revised) 


Bylaw updated to reorganize and revise the duties of the board president for consistency with information 


provided in CSBA's Board President's Workshop, and to add an optional component on providing training 


for the president to enhance his/her leadership skills. 


 


 


283 of 332







POLICY GUIDE SHEET 


Page 2 of 2 
 


 


BB 9220 - Governing Board Elections 


(BB revised) 


Bylaw updated to reflect NEW LAW (SB 415, 2015) which, effective January 1, 2018, requires a district to 


move the date of its board election to be concurrent with a statewide election whenever holding an election 


on a nonconcurrent date has resulted in a significant decrease in voter turnout, as defined. Bylaw encourages 


districts to review recent voter turnout and, if necessary, adopt a plan before the January 1, 2018 deadline in 


order to delay consolidation until November 8, 2022. Bylaw also reflects NEW LAWS which require public 


hearings before and after drawing maps of proposed trustee areas (AB 350, 2016), authorize districts to permit 


board candidates to submit candidate statements for electronic distribution (AB 2010, 2016), allow districts 


to establish a dedicated fund to make public funds available to persons seeking elective office under specified 


conditions (SB 1107, 2016), and require prospective plaintiffs who allege that the election method violates 


the California Voting Rights Act to notify the district before filing a complaint (AB 350, 2016). 


 


BB 9230 - Orientation 


(BB revised) 


Bylaw updated to delete section on "Board Candidate Orientation" and move that material to BB 9220 - 


Governing Board Elections. Bylaw also clarifies that an orientation meeting must be conducted in open 


session if a majority of the members of the board will be discussing district business, provides examples of 


topics and materials to be addressed in the orientation, and provides information about CSBA trainings for 


new and first-term board members. 


 
BB 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation 


(BB revised) 


Bylaw updated for consistency with CSBA's online board self-evaluation tool and facilitator services.  Bylaw 


also links board self-evaluation to the identification of strategies for strengthening board performance, 


including board trainings. 


 


 


284 of 332







 


 


Board Bylaws BB 9121(a) 


 


PRESIDENT 


 


 


The Governing Board shall elect a president from among its members to provide leadership on 


behalf of the governance team and the educational community it serves. 


 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


(cf. 9100 - Organization) 


 


To ensure that Board meetings are conducted in an efficient, transparent, and orderly manner, 


the president shall: 


 


1. Call such meetings of the Board as he/she may deem necessary, giving notice as 


required by law 


 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


 


2. Consult with the Superintendent or designee on the preparation of Board meeting 


agendas 


 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


3. Call the meeting to order at the appointed time and preside over the meeting 


 


4. Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order 


 


5. Enforce the Board's bylaws related to the conduct of meetings and help ensure 


compliance with applicable requirements of the Brown Act 


 


6. Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor from 


disturbance or interference 


 


7. Facilitate the Board's effective deliberation, ensuring that each Board member has an 


opportunity to participate in the deliberation and that the discussion remains focused 


 


8. Rule on issues of parliamentary procedure 


 


9. Put motions to a vote, and clearly state the results of the vote 


 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 


 


The president shall have the same rights as other members of the Board, including the right to 


discuss and vote on all matters before the Board. 


 


 


285 of 332







 


 


 


 BB 9121(b) 


 


 


PRESIDENT  (continued) 


 


 


The president shall perform other duties in accordance with law and Board policy including, 


but not limited to: 


 


1. Signing all instruments, acts, orders, and resolutions necessary to comply with legal 


requirements and carry out the will of the Board 


 


2. Working with the Superintendent or designee to ensure that Board members have 


necessary materials and information 


 


3. Subject to Board approval, appointing and dissolving all committees 


 
(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 


 


4. In conjunction with the Superintendent or designee, representing the district as the 


Board's spokesperson in communications with the media 


 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 


 


5. Leading the Board's advocacy efforts to build support within the local community and 


at the state and national levels 


 


The president shall participate in the California School Boards Association's Board President's 


Workshop and other professional development opportunities to enhance his/her leadership 


skills. 


 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 


 


When the president resigns or is absent, the vice president shall perform the president's duties. 


When both the president and vice president are absent, the clerk shall perform the president's 


duties. 


 
(cf. 9123 - Clerk) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


  


 


286 of 332







 


 


 


 


 BB 9121(c) 


 


 


PRESIDENT  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35022  President of the board 


35143  Annual organizational meetings; dates and notice 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2015 


Board Presidents' Handbook, revised 2002 


CSBA Professional Governance Standards, 2000 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   October 18, 2017 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


287 of 332







 


 


 


 


 


 


288 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Bylaw 


President 
 


BB 9121  


Board Bylaws 
 


 


The Governing Board shall elect a president from among its members to provide leadership on 


behalf of the Board and the educational community it serves. 


 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


(cf. 9100 - Organization) 


 


The president shall preside at all Board meetings.  He/she shall: 


 


1. Call the meeting to order at the appointed time 


 


2. Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order 


 


3. Enforce the Board's policies relating to the conduct of meetings and help ensure 


compliance with applicable requirements of the Brown Act 


 


4. Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor from 


disturbance or interference 


 


5. Explain what the effect of a motion would be if it is not clear to every member 


 


6. Restrict discussion to the question when a motion is before the Board 


 


7. Rule on issues of parliamentary procedure 


 


8. Put motions to a vote, and state clearly the results of the vote 


 


9. Be responsible for the orderly conduct of all Board meetings 


 


(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 


 


The president shall perform other duties in accordance with law and Board policy including, but 


not limited to: 


 


1. Signing all instruments, acts and orders necessary to carry out state requirements and the 


will of the Board 


 


289 of 332







 


 


2. Consulting with the Superintendent or designee on the preparation of the Board's agendas 


 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


3. Working with the Superintendent to ensure that Board members have necessary materials 


and information 


 


4. Subject to Board approval, appoint Board members to any committee and appointing and 


dissolving all committees 


 


(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 


 


5. Calling such meetings of the Board as he/she may deem necessary, giving notice as 


prescribed by law 


 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


 


6. Representing the district as governance spokesperson, in conjunction with the 


Superintendent 


 


(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 


 


The president shall have the same rights as other members of the Board, including the right to 


discuss and vote on all questions before the Board. 


 


When the president resigns or is absent or disabled, the vice president shall perform the 


president's duties.  When both the president and vice president are absent or disabled, another 


Board member shall perform the president's duties. In the case of a long term disability or 


resignation of both the president and vice president, the Board may elect an interim president to 


serve until the next annual organization meeting or until the return of the president or vice 


president. 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


35022  President of the board 


35143  Annual organizational meetings; dates and notice 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Board Presidents' Handbook, revised 2002 


CSBA Professional Governance Standards, 2000 


290 of 332







 


 


Maximizing School Board Leadership:  Boardsmanship, 1996 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


291 of 332







 


 


Board Bylaws BB 9220(a) 


 


GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 


 


 


Board Member Qualifications 


 


Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, 


if he/she is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district, a 


registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office.  Any person who has 


been convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, 


embezzlement or theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such 


crime, under California law or the law of another state, the United States of America, or another 


country, is not eligible to be a candidate for office or elected as a Board member except when 


he/she has been granted a pardon in accordance with law.  (Education Code 35107; Elections 


Code 20) 


 


A district employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her employment before being sworn 


in or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office.  


(Education Code 35107) 
 


(cf. 9224 - Oath of Affirmation) 


(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 


 


The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board 


members. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with information that 


will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board member, 


including information regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. The 


Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with the county election official's 


contact information and general information about school programs, district operations, and 


Board responsibilities. 


 
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 


(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 


 


Consolidation of Elections 
 


To reduce costs associated with conducting elections, the Board may consolidate Board 


elections with the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in accordance with 


Elections Code 1302. 
 


In addition, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a statewide election date 


results in a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the average local 


turnout for the previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take action to 


consolidate Board elections with statewide elections. The district shall move its election to the 


next state statewide election date, unless the Board has adopted a plan by January 1, 2018 to 


consolidate Board elections not later than the November 8, 2022 statewide general election.  


(Elections Code 14051, 14052) 


 


292 of 332







 


 


 


 BB 9220(b) 


GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 


 


 


In order to consolidate elections based on either circumstance described above, the Board shall 


adopt a resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors for approval not later than 


240 days prior to the date of the currently scheduled district election.  (Elections Code 10404.5) 


 


Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, 


the terms of office of incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next 


applicable election.  (Elections Code 10404.5) 


 
(cf. 9110 - Terms of Office) 


 


Elections Process and Procedures 


 


Each Board member shall reside within the trustee area that he/she represents but shall be 


elected by all voters in the district. 


 


To ensure ongoing compliance with the California Voting Rights Acts, the Board may review 


the district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary due to 


changes in the district's population or any of its racial, color, or language minority group 


composition.  The review shall be based on the Superintendent or designee's report to the Board 


after the release of each decennial federal census. 


 


If the Board determines that a change is necessary, it shall hold public hearings in accordance 


with Elections Code 10100 before adopting a resolution at an open meeting specifying the 


change(s), and shall, in accordance with Education Code 5019, obtain approval from the 


county committee on school district organization having jurisdiction over the district. 


 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


Campaign Conduct 


 


All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by local, 


county, state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donations, funding, and 


expenditures. 


 


A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the 


purpose of seeking elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for 


those seeking election to the Board, provided that the funds are available to all candidates who 


are qualified pursuant to Education Code 35107 without regard to incumbency or political 


preference.  (Government Code 85300) 


 


In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's 


confidence in the Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to 


the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440. 


293 of 332







 


 


  
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


 BB 9220(c) 


 


 


GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 


 


 


Statement of Qualifications 


 


On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or 


his/her designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the 


county elections official describing both of the following:  (Elections Code 10509) 


 


1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, 


if any, are for the balance of an unexpired term 


 


2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of 


qualifications pursuant to Elections Code 13307 


 
(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 


 


Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for 


inclusion in the voter's pamphlet.  Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 


words.  (Elections Code 13307) 


 


When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a 


candidate for the Board may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for 


inclusion in the mailed voter's pamphlet, prepare and submit a candidate statement for 


electronic distribution. 


 


The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or 


electronically distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a 


condition of having candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter's 


pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these costs 


to the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307. 
 


Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 


 


Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been 


elected to the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie 


votes of the time and place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before 


the Board.  The Board at that time shall determine the winner by lot.  (Education Code 5016) 


 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


294 of 332







 


 


 


 


  


 


 BB 9220(d) 


 


 


GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


1006  Qualifications for holding office, county board of education 


5000-5033  Elections 


5220-5231  Elections 


5300-5304  General provisions (conduct of elections) 


5320-5329  Order and call of elections 


5340-5345  Consolidation of elections 


5360-5363  Election notice 


5380  Compensation (of election officer) 


5390  Qualifications of voters 


5420-5426  Cost of elections 


5440-5442  Miscellaneous provisions 


7054  Use of district property 


35107  Eligibility; school district employees 


35177  Campaign expenditures or contributions 


35239  Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70 ADA 


ELECTIONS CODE 


20  Public office eligibility 


1302  Local elections, school district election 


2201  Grounds for cancellation 


4000-4008  Elections conducted wholly by mail 


10010  District boundaries 


10400-10418  Consolidation of elections 


10509  Notice of election by secretary 


10600-10604  School district elections 


13307  Candidate's statement 


13308  Candidate's statement contents 


13309  Candidate's statement, indigence 


14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act 


14050-14057  California Voter Participation Rights Act 


20440  Code of Fair Campaign Practices 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


1021  Conviction of crime 


1097  Illegal participation in public contract 


12940  Nondiscrimination, Fair Employment and Housing Act 


81000-91014  Political Reform Act 


PENAL CODE 


68  Bribes 


74  Acceptance of gratuity 


 


 


 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 


 


295 of 332







 


 


 


 


 


 


  


 BB 9220(e) 


 
 


GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 


PENAL CODE (continued) 


424  Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers 


661  Removal for neglect or violation of official duty 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 2, Section 2  Voters, qualifications 


Article 7, Section 7  Conflicting offices 


Article 7, Section 8  Disqualification from office 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 52 


10301-10508  Voting Rights Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Rey v. Madera Unified School District, (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223 


Randall v. Sorrell, (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479 


Sanchez v. City of Modesto, (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660 


Dusch v. Davis, (1967) 387 U.S. 112 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002) 


83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000) 


81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 94 (1998) 


69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986) 


 
Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections, January 2017 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Secretary of State's Office:  http://www.sos.ca.gov 


Fair Political Practices Commission: http://www.fppc.ca.gov 


Institute for Local Self Government:  http://www.ca-ilg.org 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  June 19, 2013 Soquel, California 


revised:   October 18, 2017 


 


 


296 of 332







 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


297 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Bylaw 


Governing Board Elections 
 


BB 9220  


Board Bylaws 
 


 


Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, if 


he/she is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district, a 


registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office.  Any person who has 


been convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, embezzlement 


or theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such crime, under 


California law or the law of another state, the United States of America, or another country, is 


not eligible to be a candidate for office or be a Board member except when he/she has been 


granted a pardon in accordance with law.  (Education Code 35107; Elections Code 20) 


 


A district employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her employment before being sworn in 


or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office.  


(Education Code 35107) 


 


(cf. 9224 - Oath of Affirmation) 


(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 


 


To reduce costs associated with conducting elections, the Board may consolidate Board elections 


with the local municipal or statewide primary or general election.  Board election procedures 


shall be conducted in accordance with state and federal law. 


 


(cf. 9110 - Terms of Office) 


 


Election from Trustee Area/Hybrid Method 


 


Each Board member shall reside within the trustee area that he/she represents but shall be elected 


by all voters in the district. 


 


To ensure ongoing compliance with the California and federal Voting Rights Acts, the Board 


may review the district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is 


necessary due to changes in the district's population or any of its racial, color, or language 


minority group composition.  The review shall be based on the Superintendent or designee's 


report to the Board after the release of each decennial federal census. 


 


If the Board determines that a change is necessary, it shall adopt a resolution at an open meeting 


specifying the change(s) and shall, in accordance with Education Code 5019 or other applicable 


provisions of law, obtain approval from the county committee on school district organization 


having jurisdiction over the district. 


298 of 332







 


 


 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


Campaign Conduct 


 


In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's 


confidence in the Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere to 


the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440. 


 


(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


 


Statement of Qualifications 


 


The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, or mailing of 


candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307.  As a condition of having 


candidate statements included in the voter's pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay 


their estimated pro rata share of these costs to the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 


13307. 


 


On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or 


his/her designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to the 


county elections official describing both of the following:  (Elections Code 10509) 


 


1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which offices, if 


any, are for the balance of an unexpired term 


 


2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of 


qualifications pursuant to Elections Code 13307 


 


(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 


 


Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 words.  (Elections Code 13307) 


 


Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 


 


Before each election, the Board shall establish whether a potential tie is to be resolved by lot or 


with a runoff election. (Education Code 5016) 


 


After an election for which the Board has decided to resolve a tie by lot, the Board shall 


immediately notify the candidates who received the tie votes of the time and place where the 


candidates or their representatives should appear before the Board.  The Board at that time shall 


determine the winner by lot.  (Education Code 5016) 


 


After an election for which the Board has decided to resolve a tie with a runoff election, the 


Board shall schedule the runoff election in accordance with law.  (Education Code 5016) 


299 of 332







 


 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


1000  Composition, and trustee area, county board of education 


1006  Qualifications for holding office, county board of education 


5000-5033  Elections 


5220-5231  Elections 


5300-5304  General provisions (conduct of elections) 


5320-5329  Order and call of elections 


5340-5345  Consolidation of elections 


5360-5363  Election notice 


5380  Compensation (of election officer) 


5390  Qualifications of voters 


5420-5426  Cost of elections 


5440-5442  Miscellaneous provisions 


7054  Use of district property 


35107  Eligibility; school district employees 


35177  Campaign expenditures or contributions 


35239  Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70 ADA 


ELECTIONS CODE 


20  Public office eligibility 


1302  Local elections, school district election 


2201  Grounds for cancellation 


4000-4004  Elections conducted wholly by mail 


10400-10418  Consolidation of elections 


10509  Notice of election by secretary 


10600-10604  School district elections 


13307  Candidate's statement 


13309  Candidate's statement, indigence 


14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act 


20440  Code of Fair Campaign Practices 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


1021  Conviction of crime 


1097  Illegal participation in public contract 


12940  Nondiscrimination, Fair Employment and Housing Act 


81000-91014  Political Reform Act 


PENAL CODE 


68  Bribes 


74  Acceptance of gratuity 


424  Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers 


661  Removal for neglect or violation of official duty 


CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 


Article 2, Section 2  Voters, qualifications 


Article 7, Section 7  Conflicting offices 


300 of 332







 


 


Article 7, Section 8  Disqualification from office 


UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42 


1973-1973aa-6  Voting Rights Act 


COURT DECISIONS 


Rey v. Madera Unified School District, (2012) 138 Cal. Rptr. 3d 192 


Randall v. Sorrell, (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479 


Sanchez v. City of Modesto, (2006) 51 Cal.Rptr.3d 821 


Dusch v. Davis, (1967) 387 U.S. 112 


ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 


85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002) 


83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000) 


81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 98 (1998) 


69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986) 


 


Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


California Secretary of State's Office:  http://www.ss.ca.gov 


Fair Political Practices Commission: http://www.fppc.ca.gov 


Institute for Local Self Government:  http://www.ca-ilg.org 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  June 19, 2013 Soquel, California 


301 of 332







 


 


Board Bylaws BB 9230(a) 


 


ORIENTATION 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes the importance of providing all newly elected or appointed 


Board members with support and information to assist them in becoming effective members 


of the Board. Incoming Board members shall be provided an orientation designed to build their 


knowledge of the district and an understanding of the responsibilities of their position. Such 


orientation may include the provision of information, support, and/or training related to Board 


functions, policies, protocols, and standards of conduct. 


 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9220 - Governing Board Elections) 


(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 


 


As early as possible following the election or appointment of Board members, one or more 


orientation sessions shall be held during open meeting(s) of the Board. The Board president 


and the Superintendent or designee shall develop an agenda for the meeting(s) and shall 


identify resources that may be useful for incoming Board members. 


 
(cf. 9121 - President) 


 


Upon their election or appointment, incoming Board members shall be provided a copy of the 


Brown Act and informed that, pursuant to Government Code 54952.1, they must conform to 


the Act's requirements as if they had already assumed office. Additional information for 


incoming Board members may include, but is not limited to, Board bylaws related to the limits 


of individual Board member authority, the conduct of Board meetings, and other Board 


operations; governance standards for ethical conduct; legal requirements related to conflict of 


interest and prohibited political activity; protocols for speaking with district staff, members of 


the public, and the media; and publications on effective governance practices. 


 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 


(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


(cf. 9010 - Public Statements) 


(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 


(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 


(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority) 


(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 


(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 


 


In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall provide incoming Board members with 


specific background information regarding the district, including, but not limited to, the 


district's vision and goals statements, local control and accountability plan and other 


comprehensive plans, student demographic data, student achievement data, district policy 


manual, district budget, and minutes of recent open Board meetings. 


 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


302 of 332







 


 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


 BB 9230(b) 


 


 


ORIENTATION  (continued) 


 


 


The Superintendent or designee may offer incoming Board members a tour of district schools 


and facilities, and may introduce them to district and school site administrators and other staff. 


 


Incoming members are encouraged, at district expense and with approval of the Board, to 


attend the California School Boards Association's Orientation for New Trustees, Institute for 


New and First-Term Board Members, and workshops and conferences relevant to the needs of 


the individual member, the Board as a whole, or the district. 


 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 


(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


33360  Department of Education and statewide association of school district boards; annual 


workshops 


33362-33363  Reimbursement of expenses; board member or member-elect 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 


54952.1  Member of a legislative body 


54952.2  Open meeting laws; posting agenda; board actions 


54952.7  Copies of Brown Act to board members 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Professional Governance Standards for School Boards 


The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  November 12, 2014 


revised:   October 18, 2017 


 


 


 


303 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Bylaw 


Orientation 
 


BB 9230  


Board Bylaws 
 


 


New Board Member Orientation 


 


The Governing Board desires to provide Board candidates with information that will enable them 


to understand the responsibilities and expectations of Board membership. The Superintendent or 


designee shall provide all candidates with general information about school programs, district 


operations, Board responsibilities and the county election official's contact information. 


 


The Superintendent will provide incoming Board Members with additional background and 


information regarding the district's vision and goals, operations, and current challenges in areas 


that include, but are not be limited to, student achievement, curriculum, finance, facilities, policy, 


human resources, and collective bargaining.  A copy of the Brown Act will also be provided. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


 


Incoming members are encouraged to attend Board meetings and review agenda materials 


available to the public in order to become familiar with current issues facing the district.  


Incoming members also may, at district expense and with approval of the Board, attend 


workshops and conferences relevant to their individual needs or to the needs of the Board as a 


whole or the district. 


 


(cf. 9240 - Board Development) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


33360  Department of Education and statewide association of school district boards; annual 


workshops 


33362-33363  Reimbursement of expenses; board member or member-elect 


ELECTIONS CODE 


13307  Candidate's statement 


20440  Code of Fair Campaign Practices 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 


54952.1  Member of a legislative body 


54952.7  Copies of Brown Act to board members 


304 of 332







 


 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


School Board Leadership, 2007 


The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2007 


Guide to Effective Meetings, 2007 


Professional Governance Standards, 2000 


Maximizing School Board Leadership, 1996 


NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 


Becoming a Better Board Member: A Guide to Effective School Board Service, 2006 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


Fair Political Practices Commission:  http://www.fppc.ca.gov 


National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:  November 12, 2014 


305 of 332







 


 


Board Bylaws BB 9400(a) 


 


BOARD SELF-EVALUATION 


 


 


The Governing Board shall annually conduct a self-evaluation in order to demonstrate 


accountability to the community and ensure that district governance effectively supports 


student achievement and the attainment of the district's vision and goals. 


 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 


 


The evaluation may address any area of Board responsibility, including, but not limited to, 


Board performance in relation to vision setting, curriculum, personnel, finance, policy 


development, collective bargaining, community relations, and advocacy. The evaluation may 


also address objectives related to Board meeting operations, relationships among Board 


members, relationship with the Superintendent, understanding of Board and Superintendent 


roles and responsibilities, communication skills, or other governance or boardsmanship skills. 


 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


 


The Board shall evaluate itself as a whole. Individual Board members are also expected to use 


the evaluation process as an opportunity to assess and set goals for their own personal 


performance. 


 


Each year, the Board, with assistance from the Superintendent, shall determine an evaluation 


method or instrument that measures key components of board responsibility and previously 


identified performance objectives. Visual and/or audio recordings of a Board meeting may 


only be used as an evaluation tool when consent is given by all Board members. 


 


Any discussion involving the Board's self-evaluation shall be conducted in open session. 


 


At the request of the Board, a facilitator may be used to assist with the evaluation process. The 


Board may invite the Superintendent or other individual(s) with pertinent information to 


provide input into the evaluation process. 


 


Following the evaluation, the Board shall set goals, define and/or refine protocols, and 


establish priorities and objectives for the following year's evaluation. The Board shall also 


develop strategies for strengthening Board performance based on identified areas of need, 


including, but not limited to, Board trainings such as those offered by the California School 


Boards Association. 


 
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 


(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


306 of 332







 


 


  


 BB 9400(b) 


 


 


BOARD SELF-EVALUATION  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


54950-54963  Brown Act; board self-evaluations not covered 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Professional Governance Standards 


Defining Governance, Issue 3: Governance Practices, Governance Brief, April 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


CSBA Board Self-Evaluation: http://bse.csba.org 


 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   October 18, 2017 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


307 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Bylaw 


Board Self-Evaluation 
 


BB 9400  


Board Bylaws 
 


 


The Governing Board shall annually conduct a self-evaluation in order to demonstrate 


accountability to the community and ensure that district governance effectively supports student 


achievement and the attainment of the district's vision and goals. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 


 


The evaluation may address any areas of Board responsibility, including but not limited to Board 


performance in relation to vision setting, curriculum, personnel, finance, policy, collective 


bargaining and community relations. The evaluation also may address objectives related to 


Board meeting operations, relationships among Board members, relationship with the 


Superintendent, understanding of Board and Superintendent roles and responsibilities, 


communication skills, or other boardsmanship skills. 


 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


 


The Board shall be evaluated as a whole. Individual Board members also are encouraged to use 


the evaluation process as an opportunity to privately assess their own personal performance. 


 


Each year the Board, with assistance from the Superintendent, shall determine an evaluation 


method or instrument that measures a reasonable number of previously identified performance 


objectives. Videotape of a Board meeting may be used as an evaluation tool only with the 


consent of all Board members. 


 


Any discussion of the Board's self-evaluation shall be conducted in open session. At the request 


of the Board, a facilitator may be used to assist with the evaluation process. The Board may 


invite the Superintendent or others to provide input into the evaluation process. 


 


Following the evaluation, the Board shall develop strategies for strengthening Board 


performance and shall establish priorities and objectives for the following year's evaluation. 


 


(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 


(cf. 9240 - Board Development) 


 


 


 


308 of 332







 


 


Legal Reference: 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


54950-54963  Brown Act; board self-evaluations not covered 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Professional Governance Standards, 2000 


Maximizing School Board Leadership, 1996 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


Bylaw SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February  23, 2011 Soquel, California 


309 of 332







 


 


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0000(a) 


 


VISION 


 


 


The Governing Board believes that a clearly stated purpose and direction for the district 


provide the foundation for continuous improvement and accountability. The Board shall adopt 


a long-range vision for district programs and activities that focuses on the achievement and 


well-being of all students and reflects the importance of preparing students for the future 


academically, professionally, and personally. The vision shall recognize the unique role of 


students, parents/guardians, staff, and community partners in contributing to a high-quality 


education for all students. The district's vision may be incorporated into its mission or purpose 


statement, philosophy or motto, long-term goals, short-term objectives, and comprehensive 


plans such as the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). 


 
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall recommend an appropriate process, with clearly defined 


procedures, timelines, and responsibilities, for establishing, reviewing, and updating the 


district's vision statements. This process shall include a review of relevant district documents 


and data including, but not limited to, information about student demographics, student 


achievement, current programs, and emerging educational issues. The process shall incorporate 


an analysis and identification of district strengths and areas in which growth is needed. Input 


shall be solicited from parents/guardians, students, staff, and community members through 


methods such as surveys, focus groups, advisory committees, and/or public meetings and 


forums. 


 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 


(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 


The Board shall review the district's vision statements annually, in conjunction with the update 


to the LCAP, to ensure consistency among all documents that set direction for the district. 


Following these reviews, the Board may revise or reaffirm the direction it has established for 


the district. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's vision to staff, 


parents/guardians, and the community. 


 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 


(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 


 


Board decisions regarding curriculum, policies, the budget, collective bargaining agreements, 


and other district operations shall be aligned with the district's vision. In addition, the 


Superintendent or designee shall ensure that staff's implementation of district programs and 


activities supports attainment of the district's vision. 


310 of 332







 


 


 


 BP 0000(b) 


 


 


VISION  (continued) 


 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding district progress 


toward the vision. 


 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


The School Board Role in Creating the Conditions for Student Achievement: A Review of the Research, 


May 2017 


Governing to Achieve: A Synthesis of Research on School Governance to Support Student 


Achievement, August 7, 2014 


Defining Governance, Issue 4: Governance Decisions, Governance Brief, June 2014 


Defining Governance, Issue 3: Governance Practices, Governance Brief, April 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   October 18, 2017 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 


adopted: July 201 


311 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Vision 
 


BP 0000  


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives and Comprehensive Plans 
 


 


In order to provide a clear focus for district programs, activities and operations, the Governing 


Board shall adopt long-range strategic goals that set direction for the district focus on student 


learning and describe what the Board wants its schools to achieve.  The strategic goals may be 


incorporated in various documents, including the district's mission or purpose statement, 


philosophy, short-term objectives, and/or comprehensive plans. 


 


(cf. 0100 - Philosophy) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall recommend an appropriate process for establishing and/or 


reviewing the district's goals. 


 


The Board shall review the district goals and metrics every year. 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's strategic goals to staff, 


parents/guardians and the community and shall regularly report to the Board regarding district 


progress toward the vision. 


 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 


 


 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Maximizing School Board Leadership: Vision, 1996 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


312 of 332







 


 


Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0100(a) 


 


PHILOSOPHY 


 


 


In order to establish and support a guiding vision for the district, the Governing Board shall 


develop, articulate, and regularly review an overarching set of fundamental principles which 


describe the district's core beliefs, values, and tenets. The Board and district staff shall 


incorporate these principles into all programs, activities, and operations of the district. 


 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


 


It is the philosophy of the district that: 


 


1. All students can learn and succeed. 


 


2. Every student should have an opportunity to receive a quality education regardless of 


his/her social, cultural, or economic background. 


 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 


 


3. Every student in the district has a right to be free from discrimination, harassment, 


intimidation, and bullying, as prohibited by law or district policy. 


 


4. The future of our nation and community depends on students possessing the skills to 


be lifelong learners, collaborative and creative problem solvers, and effective, 


contributing members of a global and technologically advanced society. 


 


5. Highly skilled and dedicated teachers and educational support staff have the capacity 


to guide students toward individual achievement and growth, and have a direct and 


powerful influence on student learning and life experiences. 


 


6. A safe, nurturing environment and positive school climate are necessary for learning, 


academic achievement, and student development. 


 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 


(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 


 


7. Parents/guardians have a right and an obligation to be engaged in their child's education 


and to be involved in the intellectual, physical, emotional, and social development and 


well-being of their child. 


 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


313 of 332







 


 


8. The needs of the whole child must be addressed, as the ability of children to learn is 


affected by social, health, and economic conditions and other factors outside the 


classroom. 


 BP 0100(b) 


 


 


PHILOSOPHY  (continued) 


 


 


9. Early identification of learning and behavioral difficulties and timely and appropriate 


support and intervention contribute to student success. 


 


10. Students and staff are encouraged and motivated by high expectations and recognition 


for their accomplishments. 


 


11. School improvement is a dynamic process requiring flexibility and innovation to meet 


the needs of students in a changing world. 


 


12. Professional development for the Board and district staff is essential for the growth and 


success of the district and its students. 


 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 


(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 


 


13. The diversity of the student body and school staff enriches the learning experience, 


promotes cultural awareness and acceptance, and serves as a model for citizenship in a 


global society. 


 


14. A common set of norms and protocols is crucial to effective governance. 


 


15. Communication, trust, respect, collaboration, and teamwork strengthen the relationship 


among Board members and between the Board and Superintendent, and contribute to 


the effectiveness of the governance team. 


 


16. The community and district are inextricably connected partners, wherein the 


community's engagement in issues that impact the schools enhances the district's 


programs and student learning. 


 
(cf. 1000 - Concepts and Roles) 
 


17. Two-way communication with all stakeholders is essential for establishing continuity, 


support, and shared goals both within the district and with the surrounding community. 


 


18. The Board has a responsibility to advocate on behalf all students, keep current on 


legislative issues affecting education, and build positive relationships with local, state, 


and federal representatives. 


 


314 of 332







 


 


19. A fiscally sound budget which is reflective of the district's vision is imperative to the 


financial stability of the district and to the attainment of its goals. 


 


  


 BP 0100(c) 


 


 


PHILOSOPHY  (continued) 


 


 


20. Responsibility for district programs and operations is shared by the entire educational 


community, with ultimate accountability resting with the Board as the basic 


embodiment of representative government. 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


51002  Local development of programs based on stated philosophy and goals 


51019  Definition of philosophy 


51100-51101  Parental involvement 


 
Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


The School Board Role in Creating the Conditions for Student Achievement: A Review of the Research, 


May 2017 


Governing to Achieve: A Synthesis of Research on School Governance to Support Student 


Achievement, August 7, 2014 


Defining Governance, Issue 2: Governing Commitments, Governance Brief, February 2014 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


National School Climate Center: http://schoolclimate.org 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy Santa Cruz City Schools, Soquel, CA 


adopted: October 18, 2017 


315 of 332







 


 


Administration BP 2140(a) 


 


EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT 


 


 


The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to establish an evaluation system that 


enables a fair assessment of the Superintendent's effectiveness in leading the district toward 


established goals, serves to support his/her continued growth in leadership and management 


skills, and provides a basis for Board decisions regarding contract extension and compensation. 


The Board shall annually conduct a formal evaluation of the Superintendent's performance and 


may provide additional opportunities throughout the year to review the Superintendent's 


progress toward meeting established goals. 


 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 


(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 


(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


 


The Board shall determine, with the Superintendent's input, the criteria, schedule, method(s), 


and instrument(s) to be used for the Superintendent's evaluation. Evaluation criteria shall 


include, but are not limited to, district goals and success indicators; educational, management, 


and community leadership skills; and the Superintendent's professional relationship with the 


Board. 


 
(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 


(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards) 


 


Prior to the evaluation, the Superintendent shall provide to the Board for its review a report of 


progress toward district goals, the Superintendent's self-appraisal of accomplishments and 


performance, and a statement of actions taken to address any Board recommendations from 


the previous evaluation. 


 


Each Board member shall independently evaluate the Superintendent's performance based 


upon the evaluation criteria, after which the Board shall produce a single document that 


integrates the individual evaluations and represents the consensus of the Board. 


 
(cf. 9121 - President) 


 


The evaluation shall provide commendations in areas of strength and achievement and 


recommendations for improving effectiveness in any areas of need, concern, or unsatisfactory 


performance. 


 


The Board shall meet in closed session with the Superintendent to discuss the evaluation.  


(Government Code 54957) 


 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 


 


316 of 332







 


 


 


 BP 2140(b) 


 


 


EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT  (continued) 


 


 


At this meeting, the Superintendent shall have an opportunity to ask questions, respond 


verbally and in writing to the evaluation, and present additional information regarding his/her 


performance or district progress. 


 


The discussion shall include the establishment of performance goals for the next year and may 


identify professional development opportunities for the Superintendent and/or the entire 


governance team to address areas of concern, strengthen the relationship between the 


Superintendent and Board, or enhance the Superintendent's knowledge of current educational 


issues and leadership and management skills. 


 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 


(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation) 


 


After the Board and Superintendent have discussed the evaluation, the Board president and 


Superintendent shall sign the evaluation and it shall be placed in the Superintendent's personnel 


file. The evaluation, including personal performance goals, shall be confidential to the extent 


permitted by law. 


 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


6254.8  Public Records Act; employment contracts 


54957  Closed session, personnel matters 


COURT DECISIONS 


Versaci v. Superior Court, (2005) 127 Cal.App.4th 805 


Duval v. Board of Trustees, (2001) 93 Cal.App.4th 902 


 
Management Resources: 


WEB SITES 


CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 


Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 


 


 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


revised:   October 18, 2017 


 


 


317 of 332







 


 


 


318 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Evaluation Of The Superintendent 
 


BP 2140  


Administration 
 


 


The Governing Board shall annually conduct a formal evaluation of the Superintendent's 


performance in order to assess his/her effectiveness in leading the district toward established 


goals. The Board and Superintendent shall establish an appropriate schedule for the annual 


evaluation process. 


 


(cf. 0000 - Vision) 


(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 


(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 


 


Evaluation criteria shall be based on district goals and success indicators agreed upon by the 


Board and Superintendent prior to the evaluation. The evaluation shall provide commendations 


in areas of strength, provide recommendations for improving effectiveness, and serve as a basis 


for making decisions about salary increases and/or contract extension. 


 


(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 


 


The Board and Superintendent shall annually consider what evaluation method(s) will best serve 


the district and agree on the specific written instrument to be used.  As part of the evaluation 


process, the Board and Superintendent shall solicit, in writing, confidential feedback from 


District Administrators regarding the Superintendent's performance objectives.  This 


information shall be compiled by the Board President with written comments intact, and shared 


with the Superintendent and the Board. 


 


Prior to the evaluation, the Superintendent shall be responsible for preparing and distributing to 


the Board for its review a report of progress toward district goals, the Superintendent's self-


appraisal of accomplishments and performance, and a review of action taken to address any 


Board recommendations from the previous evaluation.  The Board shall also review the 


Superintendent's current contract and any relevant Board policies. 


 


Each Board member shall independently evaluate the Superintendent's performance.  The Board 


shall determine who will summarize and combine the individual evaluations to create a 


consensus document and how that consensus document will be formatted.  The evaluation shall 


be a composite of individual Board members' opinions, but there shall be only one final 


evaluation representing the Board's collective judgment.  This final evaluation shall be provided 


to the Superintendent for his/her response. 


 


The Board shall meet in closed session with the Superintendent to discuss the evaluation. 


319 of 332







 


 


(Government Code 54957) 


 


(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 


 


The Superintendent shall have an opportunity to ask questions, respond verbally and in writing to 


the evaluation, and present additional evidence of his/her performance or district progress. 


 


The Board president and Superintendent shall sign the evaluation as evidence that the evaluation 


has been discussed. The Superintendent shall place the evaluation in his/her personnel file. 


 


(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 


 


After each evaluation has been completed, the Board shall meet in open session to give the 


Board and Superintendent an opportunity to jointly identify performance goals for the next year. 


 


(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards) 


(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 


(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


GOVERNMENT CODE 


54957  Closed session, personnel matters 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Maximizing School Board Governance: Superintendent Evaluation, 2004 


WEB SITES 


CSBA, Single District Governance Services:  http://www.csba.org 


Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


320 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Employment References 
 


BP 4112.61  


Personnel 
 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall process all requests for references, letters of 


recommendation, or information about the reasons for separation regarding all district employees 


other than himself/herself.  All letters of recommendation to be issued on behalf of the district 


for current or former employees must be approved by the Superintendent or designee. 


 


At his/her discretion, the Superintendent or designee may refuse to give a recommendation.  


Any recommendation he/she gives shall provide a careful, truthful and complete account of the 


employee's job performance and qualifications. 


 


(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 


(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


LABOR CODE 


1050-1054  Reemployment privileges 


CIVIL CODE 


47  Privileged communication 


CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 


527.3  Labor disputes 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


80332  Professional candor and honesty in letters or memoranda of employment 


recommendation 


COURT DECISIONS 


Randi W. v. Muroc Joint Unified School District et al., (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 1066 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:  February 23, 2011 Soquel, California 


321 of 332







 


 


Instruction BP 6161.1(a) 


 


SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 


 


 


The Governing Board desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad 


spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect society's diversity, and enhance the use of 


multiple teaching strategies and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials 


based on a determination that such materials are an effective learning resource to help students 


achieve grade-level competency and that the materials meet criteria specified in law. 


Textbooks, technology-based materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with 


academic content standards and the district's curriculum to ensure that they effectively support 


the district's adopted courses of study. 


 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 


(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 


 


The Board shall select instructional materials for use in grades K-8 that have been approved 


by the State Board of Education (SBE) or have otherwise been determined to be aligned with 


the state academic content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the 


Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8.  (Education Code 


60200, 60210) 


 


The Board shall adopt instructional materials for grades 9-12 upon determining that the 


materials meet the criteria specified in law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 


60400) 


 


Review Process 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials shall 


be reviewed for recommendation to the Board. Toward that end, he/she may establish an 


instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional materials. 


 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


 


The review process shall involve teachers in a substantial manner and shall encourage the 


participation of parents/guardians and community members.  (Education Code 60002) 


 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 


 


In addition, the instructional materials review committee may include administrators, other 


staff who have subject-matter expertise, and students as appropriate. 


 


322 of 332







 


 


  


 BP 6161.1(b) 


 


 


SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 


 


 


If the district chooses to use instructional materials for grades K-8 that have not been adopted 


by the SBE, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a majority of the participants in 


the district's review process are classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or 


grade level of the materials.  (Education Code 60210) 


 


Individuals who participate in the selection or review of instructional materials shall not have 


a conflict of interest, as defined in administrative regulation, in the materials being reviewed. 


 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 


 


The committee shall review instructional materials using criteria provided in law and 


administrative regulation, and shall provide the Board with documentation supporting its 


recommendations. 


 


All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the district 


office. 


 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


 


The district may pilot instructional materials, using a representative sample of classrooms for 


a specified period of time during a school year, in order to determine how well the materials 


support the district's curricular goals and academic standards. Feedback from teachers piloting 


the materials shall be made available to the Board before the materials are adopted. 


 


Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 


 


The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the sufficiency of the 


district's textbooks and other instructional materials.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first day students 


attend school for that year.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, interested community 


members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. Ten days prior to the hearing, the 


Superintendent or designee shall post a notice in three public places within the district 


containing the time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take place during 


or immediately following school hours.  (Education Code 60119) 


 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


  


 


323 of 332







 


 


 


 


 BP 6161.1(c) 


 


 


SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 


 


 


At the hearing(s), the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in each 


school, including each English learner, has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials 


which are aligned to the state content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or 


the Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8 and which are 


consistent with the content and cycles of the state's curriculum frameworks. Sufficiency of 


instructional materials shall be determined in each of the following subjects:  (Education Code 


60119) 


 


1. Mathematics 


 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 


 


2. Science 


 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 


 


3. History-social science 


 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


4. English language arts, including the English language development component of an 


adopted program 


 
(cf. 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction) 


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 


 


5. World/foreign language 


 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 


 


6. Health 


 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


 


The Board shall also determine the availability of science laboratory equipment, as applicable 


to science laboratory courses offered in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient 


textbooks and/or instructional materials to use in class and to take home.  However, this does 


not require that each student have two sets of materials. The materials may be in a digital 


format as long as each student, at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the 


324 of 332







 


 


class and to take home as all other students in the same class or course in the district and has  


 


 


 BP 6161.1(d) 


 


 


SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 


 


 


the ability to use and access them at home. However, the materials shall not be considered 


sufficient if they are photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 


materials copied to address a shortage.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks or instructional materials, it shall 


provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, for each school in 


which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-aligned 


textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the reasons that each student does 


not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials. The Board shall take any action, except 


an action that would require reimbursement by the Commission of State Mandates, to ensure 


that each student has sufficient materials within two months of the beginning of the school year 


in which the determination is made.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


The degree to which every student has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional 


materials shall be included in the district's local control and accountability plan.  (Education 


Code 52060) 


 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 


 


Complaints 


 


Complaints concerning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with law, Board 


policy, and administrative regulation. 


 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


325 of 332







 


 


 


 


 


 


 BP 6161.1(e) 


 


 


SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 


 


 


 
Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition against discrimination 


1240  County superintendent, general duties 


33050-33053  General waiver authority 


33126  School accountability report card 


35272  Education and athletic materials 


44805  Enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and regulations 


49415  Maximum textbook weight 


51501  Nondiscriminatory subject matter 


52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 


60000-60005  Instructional materials, legislative intent 


60010  Definitions 


60040-60052  Instructional requirements and materials 


60060-60063.5  Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 


60070-60076  Prohibited acts (re instructional materials) 


60110-60115  Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education 


60119  Public hearing on sufficiency of materials 


60200-60210  Elementary school materials 


60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 


60350-60352  Core reading program instructional materials 


60400-60411  High school textbooks 


60510-60511  Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials 


60605  State content standards 


60605.8  Common Core State Standards 


60605.86-60605.88  Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core State Standards 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


9505-9530  Instructional materials 


 
Management Resources: 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


Instructional Materials FAQ 


01-05  Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, rev. January 2015 


Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


Association of American Publishers:  http://www.publishers.org 


California Academic Content Standards Commission, Common Core State Standards: 


http://www.scoe.net/castandards 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:   February 13, 2013 Soquel, California 


326 of 332







 


 


revised:    October 18, 2017 


 


 


327 of 332







 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


Board Policy 


Selection And Evaluation Of Instructional Materials 
 


BP 6161.1  


Instruction 
 


 


Cautionary Notice:  As added and amended by SBX3 4 (Ch. 12, Third Extraordinary Session, 


Statutes of 2009), ABX4 2 (Ch. 2, Fourth Extraordinary Session, Statutes of 2009), and SB 70 


(Ch. 7, Statutes of 2011), Education Code 42605 grants districts flexibility in "Tier 3" categorical 


programs. The Santa Cruz City School District has accepted this flexibility and thus is deemed in 


compliance with the statutory or regulatory program and funding requirements for these 


programs for the 2008-09 through 2014-15 fiscal years.  As a result, the district may temporarily 


suspend certain provisions of the following policy or regulation that reflect these requirements.  


For further information, please contact the Superintendent or designee. 


 


The Governing Board desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad 


spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect society's diversity, and enhance the use of 


multiple teaching strategies and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials 


based on a determination that such materials are an effective learning resource to help students 


achieve grade-level competency and that the materials meet criteria specified in law. Textbooks, 


technology-based materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with academic 


content standards and the district's curriculum to ensure that they effectively support the district's 


adopted courses of study. 


 


(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 


(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 


(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 


(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 


(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 


(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 


(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 


(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 


 


The Board shall select instructional materials for use in grades K-8 that have been approved by 


the State Board of Education (SBE) or have otherwise been determined to be aligned with the 


state academic content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the Common 


Core Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8.  (Education Code 60200, 60210) 


 


The Board shall adopt instructional materials for grades 9-12 upon determining that the materials 


meet the criteria specified in law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 60400) 


 


The Board's priority in the selection of instructional materials is to ensure that all students are 


328 of 332







 


 


provided with standards-aligned instructional materials in the core curriculum areas of 


English/language arts, mathematics, science, and history-social science. 


 


Review Process 


 


The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials shall be 


reviewed for recommendation to the Board. Toward that end, he/she may establish an 


instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional materials. 


 


(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 


 


The review process shall involve teachers in a substantial manner and shall encourage the 


participation of parents/guardians and community members.  (Education Code 60002) 


 


In addition, the instructional materials review committee may include administrators, other staff 


who have subject-matter expertise, and students as appropriate. 


 


If the district chooses to use instructional materials for grades K-8 that have not been adopted by 


the SBE, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a majority of the participants in the 


district's review process are classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or grade 


level of the materials. (Education Code 60210) 


 


Individuals who participate in the selection or review of instructional materials shall not have a 


conflict of interest, as defined in administrative regulation, in the materials being reviewed. 


 


(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 


 


The committee shall review instructional materials using criteria provided in law and 


administrative regulation, and shall provide the Board with documentation supporting its 


recommendations. 


 


All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the district 


office. 


 


(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 


 


The district may pilot instructional materials, using a representative sample of classrooms for a 


specified period of time during a school year, in order to determine how well the materials 


support the district's curricular goals and academic standards. Feedback from teachers piloting 


the materials shall be made available to the Board before the materials are adopted. 


 


Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 


 


The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the sufficiency of the district's 


textbooks and other instructional materials.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


329 of 332







 


 


The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first day students 


attend school for that year.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, interested community 


members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. Ten days prior to the hearing, the 


Superintendent or designee shall post a notice in three public places within the district containing 


the time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take place during or 


immediately following school hours.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 


 


At the hearing(s), the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in each 


school, including each English learner, has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials which 


are aligned to the state content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the 


Common Core Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8 and which are consistent 


with the content and cycles of the state's curriculum frameworks. Sufficiency of instructional 


materials shall be determined in each of the following subjects:  (Education Code 60119) 


 


1. Mathematics 


 


(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 


 


2. Science 


 


(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 


 


3. History-social science 


 


(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 


 


4. English language arts, including the English language development component of an 


adopted program 


 


(cf. 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction) 


(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners) 


 


5. Foreign language 


 


(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 


 


6. Health 


 


(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 


 


The Board shall also determine the availability of science laboratory equipment, as applicable to 


science laboratory courses offered in grades 9-12. (Education Code 60119) 


330 of 332







 


 


 


In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient 


textbooks and/or instructional materials to use in class and to take home.  However, this does 


not require that each student have two sets of materials. The materials may be in a digital format 


as long as each student, at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the class and to 


take home as all other students in the same class or course in the district and has the ability to use 


and access them at home.  However, the materials shall not be considered sufficient if they are 


photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional materials copied to address 


a shortage.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


The Board shall also make a determination that all students within the district who are enrolled in 


the same course have "identical" standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials from the 


same adoption cycle, as defined in Education Code 1240.3 and 60119.  (Education Code 1240.3, 


42605) 


 


However, the district may purchase the newest adopted instructional materials for students in 


district schools ranked in deciles 1-3 of the base Academic Performance Index in any one of the 


past three school years without necessarily purchasing these materials for use in other district 


schools. (Education Code 1240.3) 


 


If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks or instructional materials, it shall 


provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, for each school in 


which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards- aligned 


textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the reasons that each student does 


not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials. The Board shall take any action, except 


an action that would require reimbursement by the Commission of State Mandates, to ensure that 


each student has sufficient materials within two months of the beginning of the school year in 


which the determination is made.  (Education Code 60119) 


 


Complaints 


 


Complaints concerning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with law, Board 


policy, and administrative regulation. 


 


(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 


(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 


 


 


 


Legal Reference: 


EDUCATION CODE 


220  Prohibition against discrimination 


1240  County superintendent, general duties 


1240.3  Definition of sufficiency for categorical flexibility 


33050-33053  General waiver authority 


33126  School accountability report card 


331 of 332







 


 


35272  Education and athletic materials 


42605 Tier 3 categorical flexibility 


44805  Enforcement of course of studies;  use of textbooks, rules and regulations 


49415  Maximum textbook weight 


51501  Nondiscriminatory subject matter 


60000-60005  Instructional materials, legislative intent 


60010  Definitions 


60040-60052  Instructional requirements and materials 


60060-60062  Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 


60070-60076  Prohibited acts (re instructional materials) 


60110-60115  Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education 


60119  Public hearing on sufficiency of materials 


60200-60210  Elementary school materials 


60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 


60240-60252  State Instructional Materials Fund 


60350-60352  Core reading program instructional materials 


60400-60411  High school textbooks 


60510-60511  Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials 


60605  State content standards 


60605.8  Common Core Standards 


60605.86-60605.88  Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core Standards 


CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 


9505-9530  Instructional materials 


 


Management Resources: 


CSBA PUBLICATIONS 


Flexibility Provisions in the 2008 and 2009 State Budget: Policy Considerations for Governance 


Teams, Budget Advisory, March 2009 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 


01-05  Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, September 2001 


Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2000 


WEB SITES 


CSBA: http://www.csba.org 


Association of American Publishers:  http://www.publishers.org 


California Academic Content Standards Commission, Common Core Standards: 


http://www.scoe.net/castandards 


California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 


 


 


 


Policy SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


adopted:   February 13, 2013 Soquel, California 


332 of 332





		Agenda 11-8-17 Final

		Minutes 10-11-17 Reviewed

		Minutes 10-18-17 Final

		Minutes 11-1-17 Draft

		Cover - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions

		Attachment - Item 8.1.1 - Certificated Personnel Actions.doc

		Cover - Item 8.1.2- Classified Personnel Actions -

		Attachment - Item 8.1.2- Classified Personnel Actions -

		Purchase Orders Over $2500 cover

		Purchase Orders over $2500 list

		PO/REQ

		Vendor warrants cover

		Vendor Warrants list

		Budget Transfers Sept 2017 cover

		Budget Transfers Sept 2017 list

		Cvr Gifts 11.8.17

		P.E. Waiver cover 11.8.17

		P.E. waiver req redacted

		PTOC appointments cover

		PTOC  App Carol McKee

		PTOC App Rob Darrow

		PTOC App Linnaea Holgers

		PTOC App Olga de Santa Anna

		PTOC App Isabelle Tuncer

		BOC appointment Richard Wyrsch cover

		BOC App Richard Wyrsch

		1st Qtr Investment Report 17-18 cover

		COE 1718 Interest memo

		 MONTHLY INTEREST MEMO

		SC Co Treasury Quarterly Investment Report - 093017

		Cvr Project Coordinator Revised Job Description

		Project Coordinator.Revised Job Description

		contracts cover

		Cvr MOU.S4C.SCCS.Grade.7.Field.Trip.17-18

		2017-18 MOU for S4C 7th Grade College Summit.Signed.KM

		M Barker Agrmt for Prof Svce Sp Ed cover

		M Barker Agrmt for Prof Svce Sp Ed

		Wasinger Inspection Svces IOR Agrmt Ad Ed cover

		Wasinger Inspection Services - Agrmt re Ad Ed portable IOR

		School Site Solutions - Agrmt Prof Sv re CEQA all sites cover

		School Site Solutions - Agrmt Prof Sv re CEQA all sites

		Crowe Horwath Measure B audit agrmt cover

		Crowe Horwath Measure B audit agrmt

		GTC Contract NB soils analysis cover

		GTC Contract NB soils analysis

		surplus cover

		SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS

		AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property

		FROM:    Patrick K. Gaffney, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services

		THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent

		RECOMMENDATION:

		BACKGROUND:

		Surplus WL prjectors monitors

		SITE: Westlake Elementary

		Surplus b40ss iPad

		SITE: BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS

		Cvr LCAP Update EL Roadmap and School Community Coordinators

		LCAP Presentation2

		Workforce Housing Feasibility Study cover

		DCG Consulting Sv Agrmt Prelim Workforce Housing Study 110817

		DCG Company Profile

		Workforce Housing2

		Cvr SPSA 11.8.17

		SPSA Presentation2.District.Final.11.8.17

		Reject bid cover

		Reject Bid 2017-16 CRW

		Cvr Board Policy Updates Item 8.3.5.FINAL

		Guidesheet for Board.11.8.17

		BB 9121 President

		BB 9121 current

		BB 9220 Governing Board Elections

		BB 9220 current

		BB 9230 Orientation

		BB 9230 current

		BB 9400 Board Self Evaluation

		BB 9400 current

		BP 0000 Vision

		BP 0000 current

		BP 0100 Philosophy

		BP 2140 Evaluation of the Superintendent

		BP 2140 current

		BP 4112.61 current

		BP 6161.1 Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials

		BP 6161.1 current



		Button1: 






